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VISION
Becoming a leading Vietnamese banking group - expanding
international operation, winning clients respectation, trust and
recommendation.

MISSION
With responsibility, passion and intellect, we collectively
create attractive models of cooperation for clients, partners,
shareholders, employees and community.

CORE VALUES
We identify the 8 Core values of DongA Bank are:
Trustability - Responsibility - Innovation - Companionship Humanitarian - Integrity - Compliance - Solidarity.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

With the planned equity increment in 2012, customer base of 6 million and
with strong internal resources accumulated over the years, DongA Bank
are taking steady steps conquering new heights and actualization its visions
until 2020, i.e. securing the Bank’s status among the nation’s top FinancialBanking Group and winning the hearts and minds of its valued customers.

Dear Shareholders,
By July 2012, DongA Bank shall have reached its 20
year-old milestone. This marks an age of full vigour and
capability which serves as a springboard for DongA Bank’s
steadfast advancement.
Over the past 20 years, DongA Bank has constantly been growing
in both scope and scale with experienced human resources. In
2011, due to the unfavourable conditions of both the global and
local economy, the Government adopted a stringent fiscal and
monetary policy by introducing Resolution 11, designed to curb
inflation and stabilize macro-economy. In this context, Vietnam’s
GDP growth rate in 2011, which stood at 5.89% compared with
6.78% in 2010, was a major success. For DongA Bank, the bank
successfully maintained its growth rate by attaining a profit of
VND 1,255 billion compared with VND 858 billion in 2010. This
has been the result of the strategic directions of the Board of
Directors (BOD), the excellent governance of the Board of
Management (BOM), and persistent efforts of all staff members.
In 2011, the stock exchange, the conduit of medium and
long-term funds for the economy, and the real estate market
both remained gloomy. This led to the delay in most business
plans which were designed to increase equity as a means to
enhance financial capabilities.
Under those circumstances, by upholding the motto
of “Progress and Sustainability”, with the judicious
directions of the BOD and the flexible governance of
the BOM, DongA Bank managed to make steadfast
and secure steps forward. This has been evidenced by
obviously improved financial indicators, including a profit
target fulfillment rate of 96.54% (i.e. VND 1,255 billion
/VND 1,300 billion). DongA Bank’s dividend rate has
also reached the target set by the 19th Annual General
Meeting.

In 2012, the local economy is forecasted to face with
continued difficulties and challenges which are expected
to be even harsher than those in 2011. The Government’s
efforts to restructure the economy are in the very initial
stage amid the ongoing public debt crisis in Europe. The
Government and the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV) are
expected to proceed with a tight and flexible monetary
policy with priorities given to curbing inflation, interest
rate-related issues, and credit growth… with a view to
ensuring macro-economic stability.
Under the motto of “Innovation - Progress”, DongA Bank is
strongly confident in securing the major objectives in 2012
including a consolidated profit of VND 1,500 billion and an
increment of equity to VND 6,000 billion. The rise in equity
is intended to enhance the Bank’s financial strength, intensify
competitiveness, finance modern technology, diversify
products and services, and ensure quality human resources.
All these efforts aim to make DongA Bank a strong, safe,
convenient and customer-oriented financial institution.
With the planned equity increment in 2012, customer base of
6 million and with strong internal resources accumulated over
the years, DongA Bank are taking steady steps conquering new
heights and actualization its visions until 2020, i.e. securing the
Bank’s status among the nation’s top Financial-Banking Group
and winning the hearts and minds of its valued customers.

CHAIRMAN
Pham Van Bu

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

7

8

DongA Bank

message from General Manager

DongA Bank’s coverage on communication channels continued its impressive
presence with the new positioning “The Bank of Responsibility, the Bank of
Hearts”. This positioning is a strategic move based on the core values that
DongA Bank has been building towards and nurturing over the past 19 years.
The Bank’s vision is building a solid financial institution with a strong sense
of responsibility from the heart.

Dear customers, partners and shareholders,
Banking is all about trust. When customers deposit their
savings with DongA Bank, the Bank safe-keep customer’s
money and at the same time cherish and value customers’
trust. In 2011, DongA Bank won the trust of additional one
more million customers, thus increasing its customer base to
over 6 million. This is an invaluable asset for a bank that has
just turned 19 years old.
Having gone through a turbulent year of the finance-banking
industry, DongA Bank has steadfastly advanced toward
ambitious targets set by the BOD and the shareholders.
In addition to the 46% growth of profit, DongA Bank also
prides itself on creating elegy changes from within as
well as its impressively positioning among public in 2011.
2011’s achievements are among the first fruitful results of
the transformation that DongA Bank foresaw and initiated
several years ago.
The reform of the compensation, assessment and benefit system
together with the improvement of professional skills and the
sharpening of risk management capabilities that were carried out
through out the year 2011 have resulted in breakthroughs in each
DongA Bank’s employee as well as in the entire organization.
While the staff sizing remained unchanged, thanks to seminars,
training sessions and other activities, employees were refreshed
with new aspirations, new beliefs and new energy, thus promoting
productivity and contributing to the positive business performance
and secure financial indicators for the Bank.
With regards to branding and promotion, DongA Bank’s coverage
on communication channels continued its impressive presence
with the new positioning “The Bank of Responsibility, the Bank
of Hearts”. This positioning is a strategic move based on the

core values that DongA Bank has been building towards and
nurturing over the past 19 years. The Bank’s vision is building
a solid financial institution with a strong sense of responsibility
from the heart.
In 2011, DongA Bank continued to be honored by both local
and international institutions with privileged awards such as
MoneyGram’s “Best agent for co-op marketing initiatives”
Award, Bank of New York’s Award for STP (Straight-ThroughProcessing), Award for Prominent Application of IT and
Communication, and so on.
With the motto of “Innovation and Progress” in 2012, we
strongly believe that DongA Bank will pierce through challenges
and achieve the deposit target of VND 86,000 billion, new
customer development target of 600,000, and the international
payment target of USD 2.2 billion. In the Bank’s development
strategy, commercial banking will continue to play a core
role with the central focus being the expansion of individual
and SME customers. Financial indicators are set to remain
at high security levels: ROE of at least 19%, ROA of 1.5%,
and capital adequacy ratio compliant with the SBV’s norms.
The entire network is now ready for accelerating the Bank’s
self-transformation so as to successfully reach the targets
set for the year 2012.

Chief Executive Officer
Tran Phuong Binh
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CREATING
CHANGE
Careful planning is the key to sustainability

DONGA BANK’S PROFILE
I. History and Development
II. Key Milestones

History and development

OVERVIEW

CHARTER CAPITAL

4,500

DongA Commercial Bank (DongA Bank) was one of the first
joint-stock commercial banks incorporated in Vietnam in the early
1990s. During that time the local context was characterized by
numerous difficulties and constraints. After 19 years, DongA Bank
has established its position as the leading bank in Vietnam in terms
of card service development. The Bank’s exceptional achievements
are demonstrated by impressive figures:

BILLION VND

TOTAL ASSETS

65,548

BILLION VND





HUMAN RESOURCES

4,368

PEOPLE




CUSTOMERS

6,000,000

OVER
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CUSTOMERS

A 225-fold increase of charter capital from VDN 20 bn.
to VND 4,500 bn.
Total assets of VND 65,548 bn. by the end of 2011.
With only 3 major operations departments Credit,
Cash and Sales in 1992, DongA Bank has grown to 32
departmens, 3 subsidiaries and 240 branches nationwide.
An increment of human resources by 7,800%, from 56
to 4,368 people.
A customer base of 6 million individuals and enterprises.

History and development (CONTINUED)

TRANSACTION CHANNELS




Traditional banking (240 branches in 50 provinces and
cities)
Automated banking (over 1,500 ATMs)
E-banking (DongA eBanking with 4 transactional
methods of SMS Banking, Mobile Banking, Phone
Banking, and Internet Banking)

SUBSIDIARIES




DongA Money Transfer Company (DongA Money
Transfer)
DongA Da Securities Company (DongA Securities)
DongA Stock Investment Fund Management Company
(DongA Capital)

QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS








Hochiminh City Committee of Communist Party: 6.87%
of charter capital
Phu Nhuan Jewelry Joint Stock Company (PNJ): 7.7%
of charter capital
An Binh Capital Joint Stock Company: 6,02% of charter
capital
Son Tra Dien Ngoc Joint Stock Company: 3.62% of
charter capital
Ky Hoa Tourism and Trading Sole Proprietorship
Limited Company: 3.55% of charter capital
Ninh Thinh Limited Company: 3.4% of charter capital
Phu Nhuan Construction and Trading Sole
Proprietorship Limited Company: 2.38% of charter
capital

Key operational procedures of the Bank are standardized in
accordance with ISO 9001:2000.
SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION
DongA Bank has 100% domestic shareholders. As at Dec. 31st
2011:
 Total shares of institutional shareholders: 41.5%
 Total shares of individual shareholders: 58.5%
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KEY MILESTONES
1992
DongA Bank was incorporated on July 1st 1992 with a
charter capital of 20 bn VND, staff sizing of 56 people and
3 departments.
1993 - 1998
DongA Bank focused its resources on developing individual
and SME customer base. During these years, DongA Bank
launched numerous new services including international
payment, express money transfer and salary payment via
account. The Bank was also the only entrusted agent of the
Swedish International Development Cooperation Agency
(SIDA) regarding financing for local SMEs. DongA Bank
was also one of two local recipients of funds from the Rural
Development Fund of the World Bank.
1999 - 2002
DongA Bank became an official member of the Society
for Worldwide Interbank Financial Telecommunication
(SWIFT). The Bank also established DongA Money
Transfer, and successfully applied the quality
management system according to ISO 9001:2000 into
banking activities. As one of the 2 local banks entrusted
with funds from the Japan Bank for International
Cooperaiton (JBIC), DongA Bank focused on financing
for SMEs. At the same time, the DongA Bank Card
Center was established, followed by the issueance of
DongA Multifunctional cards. This period also marked the
Bank’s involvement in sport field with the take-over of the
Ho Chi Minh Municipal Police Football Club, followed by
the incorporation of Dong A Sport Joint-stock Company
(DongA Bank Football Club).
2003 - 2007
DongA Bank had 2,000,000 customers using its card product
only 4 years after launching. This made the Bank the leader
among joint-stock commercial banks in terms of card service
and ATM development in Vietnam. During these years,
DongA Bank invested and introduced a series of services
aiming at providing customers with the most convenience.
As part of this plan, DongA Bank implemented a network
of ATMs and launched the automatic electricity bill payment
service via this system. The Bank established the Vietnam
Bankcard (VNBC) network, connecting banks’ card systems.
Successul connection with China Union Pay was also
acquired during these years.
DongA Bank was also one of the first local banks that
developed and launched two modern transaction channels:
Automated DongA Banking and DongA eBanking besides the
successful implementation of the core-banking project that
enabled online transactions in the whole network. This was
indeed an operational turning point that made connectivity
possible in the system, thus offering better operational
control as well as minimizing operational risks.
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On its 15th anniversary, DongA Bank officially adopted a new logo
and Corporate Identity System (CIS). This was accompanied by
the opening of several modern offices modeled after the Head
Office Building. In this period, the Bank’s international payment
revenue reached USD 2 billion and its customer base stood
at 2 million customers. DongA Bank was listed by the United
Nations Development Program among Vietnam’s top 200 biggest
enterprises.
2008
DongA Bank became the first bank in Vietnam that
introduced cash deposit AMTs that allowed as many as
100 dong notes of various denominations in a single
transaction. In the same year, DongA Bank credit card was
issued and the Bank’s card system was connected to the
global network via VISA.
The year 2008 also marked the presence of DongA Bank
in 50 provinces and cities throughout the country with 182
branches and over 800 ATMs.
2009
DongA Bank raised its charter capital to VND 3,400 billion
while the number of customers rocketed to 4 million. It was
connected to the 3 major card networkds including VNBC,
Smartlink and Banknetvn. The Bank’s mobile ATM won it a
record in Guiness Vietnam.
DongA Bank also launched a wide range of products and
services that answered to both individuals’ and enterprises’
demands such as: 24-minute-accepted loan, 1-kilometer
outreach, electronic salary payment, bill payment, and so on.
2010
DongA Bank increased equity to VND 4,500 billion and
acquired another 1 million customers, making the Bank’s the
customer base of 5 million people.
The Bank officially launched Phone Banking – a 24-hour
automatic answering system that facilitated customers’
banking transactions via telephone. In the same year,
DongA Bank pioneered in introducing ATM protection
solutions against increasing ATM crimes in the country.
DongA Money Transfer won the “Most Innovative
Company 2010” award presented by the International
Association of Money Transfer Networks (IAMTN).
DongA Bank became the first local bank that introduced the
Gold ATM, the first gold-selling ATM in Vietnam, and won a
Certificate of Guiness Record for this initiative.

KEY MILESTONES (CONTINUED)

2011
DongA Bank’s network continued to be extended with an
additional 7 branches. The total number of branches thus
climbed to 240.
Also in 2011, on the occasion of its 19th anniversary,
DongA Bank officially presented its new brand positioning
as “The Bank of Responsibility, the Bank of Hearts”. Core
Values, Vision and Missions for DongA Bank in the next 20
years were also introduced.
The Bank’s image on the digital world was also completed
with the introduction of a new interface on the www.
dongabank.com.vn website. The website, which is displayed
both in Vietnamese and English, is highly interactive, easily
accessible and intergrated with online transaction utilities.
With regards to money transfer, the DongA Bank brand
was promoted to a new height with the launching of the

first two DongA Bank – MoneyGram transfer counters in
Vietnam in March 2011, thus tightening the partnership
between DongA Bank and MoneyGram. These two
counters, which are the only 2 in Vietnam that are complied
with MoneyGram’s international standard in design and
decoration, are said to provide customers with premium
money transfer service.

Achievements in Year 2011:








Best Agent for Co-op Marketing Initiatives 2011
IT and Communication Technology Application Award
Best Deposit Service, Credit Service and ATM Service
Award by Bank
Vietnam Golden Star Award
STP (Straight - Through - Processing) Award
Vietnam’s Strong Brand Award
Certificate of Merit for Contribution in “Supporting
Financing for Workers in Export Processing Zones and
Industrial Parks “
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Organizational Chart
SHAREHOLDERS’ GENERAL

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CONSULTING COMMITTEE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

VICE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

HUMAN RESOURCE
COMMITTEE

RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ OFFICE

RETAIL BANKING
DIVISION

CORPORATE
BANKING DIVISION

SALES DIVISION

BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

TREASURY

PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES

PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES

FOREX TRADING

BUSINESS PARTNER
DEVELOPMENT

INTERNATIONAL
PAYMENT

GOLD TRADING

INDIVIDUAL CREDIT
MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE
ACCOUNTS

GENERAL AFFAIRS

GENERAL AFFAIRS

HEAD TRANSACTION OFFICE, BRANCHES, TRANSACTION OFFICES, SAVINGS FUNDS, SUBSIDIARIES
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

CREDIT COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

RISKS SETTLEMENT COMMITTEE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
COMMITTEE

DISPCIPLIARY COMMITTEE

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT’S
OFFICE

ASSETT LIQUIDATION
COMMITTEE

GENERAL OFFICE
– NORTH REGION

OPERATIONS
SUPPORT DIVISION

HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT DIVISION

SUPERVISION
DIVISION

ACCOUNTING

MARKETING

OPERATION

INTERNAL AUDIT

INFORMATICS CENTER

RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT

ORGANIZATIONAL
RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT

ADMISTRATION

CUSTOMER SERVICE
CENTER

CUSTOMER SERVICE
CENTER

LEGAL COMPLIANCE

EBANKING

CARD CENTER

TRAINING CENTER

QUALITY
MANAGEMENT

ATM/POS MANAGEMENT
CENTER
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Board of Directors

1

Mr. Pham Van Bu
Chairman

Mr. Pham Van Bu is Deputy Chief Secretary of Ho Chi Minh Municipal
Party Committee’s Office. He holds several prominent roles in the City’s
economic activities. In addition to his position as DongA Bank’s Chairman,
he also serves as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Suoi Tien
Tourism Joint-stock Company. Born in 1953, he graduated from the
Technology and Economics Faculty of Ho Chi Minh Agriculture and
Forestry University. He also holds a BA in Foreign Trade with the
Commerce University, and is a senior political theorist.

2

Madam Vu Thi Vang

Deputy Vice Chairwoman

Madam Vang, born 1958, graduated with a Bachelor degree
from Ho Chi Minh University of Economics. At DongA Bank, she
held the position of Standing Vice CEO. Currently, in addition to
the role of Standing Vice Chairman, she is also a member of the
BOD of DongA Real Estate Company, member of the BOD of
Gia Dinh Water Supply Company. Her honors include
commendations of the Prime Minister, the Ministry of Labor - War
Invalids and Social Affairs, the Governor of the State Bank of
Vietnam, and the title of Emulation Warrior of the Banking industry.

5

Mr. Tran Van Dinh
BOD member

Born in 1954 and a graduate of Hanoi University of Law, Mr. Dinh
is now an independent member of DongA Bank’s Board of
Directors.

18

DongA Bank

3

Mr. Tran Phuong Binh
BOD Member and CEO

4

Mr. Trang Thanh Suong
BOD member

Mr. Binh has been with DongA Bank since the very first days. Born
in 1959, Mr. Binh is an Economics BA with several years of
experience as an economics lecturer. He laid the foundation for
the Bank and has been one of the main drive for the development
of DongA Bank over the past 20 years. He is currently holding the
positions of BOD member and CEO of DongA Bank.

Born in 1958, Mr. Suong graduated from Ho Chi Minh
Universisty of Technology. He also holds a certificate of senior
political theorist. He is now CEO of Phu Nhuan Housing Trading
and Construction Sole-Member Co., Ltd and member of the
Board of Directors of DongA Bank.

6

7

Mr. Nguyen Dinh Truong
BOD member

Born in 1948 and a BA in Economics from Ho Chi Minh University
of General Science. His current roles include Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Viet Tien Garment Company, and member
of the Board of Directors of DongA Bank.

Mr. Dang Phuoc Dua
BOD member

Born in 1960, Mr. Dua graduated as a BA from the Vietnam National
University – Institute of Economic and Financial Research – HELP
University (Malaysia). He is currently Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Rexco Technical Equipment Import & Export Joint-stock
Company and member of the Board of Directors of DongA Bank.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

19

Board of Management

1

Mr. Tran Phuong Binh
BOD Member and CEO

(Please refer to the Profile of the Board of Directors)

2

Ms. Nguyen Thi Ngoc Van
Standing Vice CEO

Madam Nguyen Thi Ngoc Van joined DongA Bank upon graduating
with an MBA. She has acquired her banking experience at
different positions within DongA Bank. With her skills, commitment
and dedication, she has lead the team at DongA Bank to many
achievements in international payments, corporate banking and
human resources. Born in 1970, she was acknowledged as
excellent member of Vietnam Communist Party and had received
Certificate of Merit from the Governor of the State Bank of
Vietnam, Outstanding Saigon Entrepreneur Certificate among
other accolades.

5

Mr. Nguyen An
Vice CEO

Born in 1969, Mr. An has had an 18-year career with DongA Bank in
various positions. Joining the Bank right after his graduation, Mr. An quickly
won trust and promotion thanks to his proactivity and commercial
aggressiveness. Credited with market expansion, he has won many of
DongA Bank’s commendations while having been playing an active role
in several business associations.
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3

Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Xuyen
Vice CEO

4

Mr. Nguyen Huu Chinh
Vice CEO

Ms. Xuyen’s more than 12 years of experience in commerce with
a major State-owned import and export enterprise in Ho Chi Minh
City enabled her to have a thorough understanding of business
activities as well as substantial advantages when approaching
and negotiating with customers upon her commencement as a
credit manager. Born in 1958, a holder of a MA degree in
Economics, Ms. Xuyen was honorably awarded the Emulation
Warrior title as well as many other commendations of the SBV
Governor and Ho Chi Minh Municipal People’s Committee.

Mr. Chinh, born in 1960, used to be a lecturer at Ho Chi Minh
University of Economics before his employment with DongA Bank.
His extensive knowledge has helped him achieve many successess
when managing the Bank’s different business entities. His success
has been recognized with many awards from the General Labor
Federation of Vietnam, the Central Committee of the Ho Chi Minh
Youth Union and several internal honors.

6

7

Mr. Tran Dao Vu
Vice CEO

Born in 1970 and had a BA in Economics, Mr. Vu started his career
with DongA Bank in 1994. Possessing a profound understanding
of the customer psychology as well as cultural and business
characteristics of Hanoi and the northern region as a whole, he
is credited with the commercial presence and brand expansion
of DongA Bank in this region. His banking career has been honored
by the SBV Governor as well as DongA Bank.

Mr. Le Tri Thong
Vice CEO

Born in 1979, Mr. Thong graduated with honors from Oxford
University’s MBA Program. He also has a BSc in chemical
technology. His experience covers multiple managerial positions
in both international corporations and local institutions. Joining
DongA Bank in 2008, he is now Vice CEO of DongA Bank, Chairman
of the Board of Directors of DongA Money Transfer, Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Vina Smart Card Joint-stock Company
– V.N.B.C. He has been honored with many awards for his
achievements in business administration as well as academic
research.
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Board of Supervisors

1

Ms. Nguyen Thi Cuc
Chief Supervisor

Ms. Cuc, born in 1960, is an MA in
Economics. She is now a member of the
Board of Directors and Vice CEO of Phu
Nhuan Jewelry Joint-stock Company (PNJ)
while at the same time being the Chief
Supervisor of DongA Bank.
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2

Mr. Nguyen Vinh Son
Member of the Board of Supervision

Mr. Nguyen Vinh Son, born in 1959,
graduated from the Trade Faculty of Ho
Chi Minh University of Economics. He is
currently a member of the Board of
Supervision of DongA Bank.

3

Ms. Phan Thi To Loan
Member of the Board of
Supervision

Born in 1970, Ms. Loan graduated from
Ho Chi Minh University of Economics
and is currently a member of the Board
of Supervision of DongA Bank.

EXPLORING
CHANGE
Reaching out for greater possibilities

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2011
I.
DongA Bank’s Operations Review in 2011
II.
Highlights of Year 2011

DongA Bank’s operations review in 2011

GLOBAL AND LOCAL ECONOMIC CONTEXT IN 2011
In 2011, the global economy continued to experience
gloomy days with the threat of the US economy falling back
into recession, worsening public debts in Europe, political
turmoil in the Middle East and North Africa, and the tsunami
in Japan. The local economy as a result came under major
impacts, demonstrated by the declining inflow of investment
as well as the rising costs of foreign debts.
The local economy underwent a turbulent year with inflation
peaking at 18.12% while the unpredictable gold and forex
markets threatened macro-economic stability.
However, thanks to the uniform implementation of solutions
aimed at curbing inflation, stabilizing macroeconomy and
securing social welfare under the Government’s Resolution
11/NQ-CP of February 24th, 2011 and the SBV’s Directive
01/CT-NHNN of March 1st 2011, by the end of 2011, the
local economy eventually saw many positive moves. The

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) rose by 5.89%, the export
value reached a record high of US$ 96 billion, trade deficit
was kept below 10%, inbound remittances reached a record
high of US$ 9 billion, inflation rates diminished in the final
months, and economic stability was gradually materialized.
In the banking industry, as a result of poor governance and the
imbalance of terms, liquidity continued to be the Achilles’ heel
of local players. Faced with this fact, the regulator has been
demonstrating its determination in maneuvering mergers
for the purpose of better policy making and regulation while
improving the financial strength of the banking system. The
first merger recorded was one between SCB, Vietnam Tin
Nghia, and De Nhat Bank.
Against this background, DongA Bank endeavored to
overcome difficulties and recorded remarkable achievements.
The Management deliver the business performance report
for 2011 as presented below:

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2011
MAJOR INDICATORS
Indicator

Unit: billion VND

2011

2010

% change against 2010

Total assets

65,548

55,873

17.3%

Deposits

48,120

47,756

0.8%

Exposure

44,003

38,436

14.4%

NPL

1,69%

1,59%

0.1%

1,255

857

46.4%

Profit before tax
Charter capital

4,500

4,500

0%

ROA

1.53%

1.40%

0.13%

ROE

19.58%

18.58%

1%

16%

14%

2%

Dividend rate (%)
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DongA Bank’s operations review in 2011 (CONTINUED)
AN EVALUATION OF THE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
IN 2011
DEPOSITS
In the context of hiking inflation in 2011, the SBV adopted a
tightened monetary policy to cool down inflation and stabilize
the macro-economy.
The total deposit balance of DongA Bank at the end of 2011
stayed at VND 48,120 billion, up by 364 billion or 0.8%
against 2010. Out of these figures:




Deposits on the 1st tier market including valuable
papers at the end of 2011 reached 40,936 billion, down
by 1,635 billion or 3.84% against 2010. These made up
85% of the total balance.
Deposits of and loans from credit institutions stood at
5,734 billion, up by 1,560 bilion or 37.4% against early
2011. These deposits, which made up 12% of the total
balance, and were reinvested as interbank deposits
and other financial investments to bring in considerable
revenues for DongA Bank.
With the government bonds purchased during the year,
DongA Bank performed actively on the open market
via re-discount operations. As at Dec. 31st 2011, the
Bank’s loan amount provided by the SBV was VND 840
billion, accounting for 1.7% of the total deposit balance.

amount, VND 4,213 billion was in interbank deposits and the
other VND 3,127 billion in stock investments. A balance was
secured both to ensure liquidity and to maximize profitability.
Investment in affiliates
The total investments in affiliates as at Dec. 31st 2011
were VND 537 billion, down by 65 billion against 2010.
This complied with the SBV’s limitations on local banks’
investments in affiliates.
NON-CREDIT ACTIVITIES
PAYMENT
The total net profit from services in 2011 was VND 382
billion, up by 42.8 billion or 12.6% against 2010. Out of
this number, the total fees from international payment were
US$5.2 million, making 21% of total service revenues.
TRADE FINANCE

FUND USAGE

The total payment through-put in 2011 reached US$ 2,040
million, down by 16% against 2010. In 2011, DongA Bank
proceeded with developing IT for international payment
as well as with the centralization of operations at the
Head Office. DongA Bank’s international payments are
performed via the Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial
Telecommunication (SWIFT) with top security, thanks to
which no losses or failures have ever occurred.

Credit activities

FOREX TRADING

DongA Bank governed its credit activities in 2011 in
compliance with the Government’s Resolution 11/NQ-CP,
designed to secure inflation control and macro-economic
stability. The total exposure was VND 44,003 billion, up by
14.4% against early 2011. NPL was 742 billion, staying at
1.69% of the total exposure.

Both the inflow and outflow of forex in 2011 were US$ 6.7
billion. The forex flows satisfied the needs for international
payment as well as remittance payment.



In 2011, DongA Bank spent VND 296 billion on provisions.
Interbank activities

CARD
In 2011, DongA Bank was among the top 4 market leaders
in terms of market share for ATM card. The number of local
debit cards was over 5.1 million while the number of credit
cards was 7,149. The total number of POS machines and
ATMs was 1,029 and 1,236 respectively.

The deposit balance on the interbank market and
investments on the stock market at the end of 2011 were
VND 7,340 billion, up by 15% against early 2011. Out of this
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DongA Bank’s operations review in 2011 (CONTINUED)

EQUITY INCREMENT
In 2011, DongA Bank fulfilled required procedures to
increase its charter capital from VND 4,500 billion to VND
5,000 billion. The process is expected to be completed in
April 2012. The stock market condition in 2011 made it
difficult for local banks, including DongA Bank, to increase
equity.
The rise in equity is intended to ensure and promote liquidity
and loan-making at the Operations Centre and outlets in the
entire network.

AN OVERALL EVALUATION OF BUSINESS
EFFICIENCY IN 2011

positively. On monthly basis, the CEO awarded branches
that did well with the progress of profitability. As a result,
the productivity of the network was higher than that in 2010.
The profit before tax per capita of the Bank itself in 2011
was VND 286 million, substantially exceeding the VND 201
million in 2010 (up by 42%).
A number of issues, however, remained unresolved in 2011:





ATM system: customer satisfaction was far from
adequate, due to the fact that many departments are in
charge of managing ATM system at the same time.
NPL ratio of 1.69% (the industry average was 3.39%)
There were still a number of branches which did
not gave enough attention into developing retail
banking products. The Bank needed to focus more
of its resources on corporate banking to better meet
customers’ needs.
DongA Securities’ business performance was not
satisfactory with a mere profit of VND 5.6 billion.

In early 2011, the Management Board was determined to
make a change. Compared with 2010, profit growth was
sharp with consolidated figure amounting to VND 1,255
billion, up by VND 398 billion, or 46.4%, while other financial
indicators were also better than those of 2010.



Compliance with Resolution Resolution 11/NQ-CP of Feb.
24th 2011 and Directive 01/CT-NHNN of March 1st 2011
was secured and safety indicators under Circular 13 and
Circular 19 were also satisified.

In brief, DongA Bank’s business strategy in 2011 was guided
on the right course that was both in tune with the macroeconomic situation and the Bank’s internal setting. With the
exception of Tay Ninh Branch’s wrongdoing, DongA Bank
always ensured compliance with the regulations of the law
and the regulator during its safe and efficient business.

In early 2011, the CEO allocated profit quota and salary
budget to the whole network and this has so far worked
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DongA Bank’s operations review in 2011 (CONTINUED)
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE INDICATORS IN 2011 IN COMPARISON WITH THE 4 PRECEEDING YEARS
Unit: billion VND

Indicator

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

27,376

34,713

42,520

55,873

65,548

Charter capital

1,600

2,880

3,400

4,500

4,500

Total deposits

21,656

29,797

36,714

47,756

48,120

Total exposure

18,059

25,571

34,687

38,436

44,003

454

703

788

858

1,255

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

ROA

2.05%

1.69%

1.49%

1.40%

1.53%

ROE

20.89%

18.01%

18.06%

18.58%

19.58%

EFF

41%

38%

44%

48%

45.5%

14.36%

11.30%

10.64%

10.84%

10.01%

Loan to total assets ratio

66.0%

73.7%

81.6%

68.8%

67.1%

Loans to deposits ratio

83.4%

85.8%

94.5%

80.5%

91.4%

NPL ratio

0.44%

2.55%

1.32%

1.59%

1.69%

1.413

1.871

1.914

1.932

2.105

18.0%

21.0%

15.0%

14.0 %

16.0%

Total consolidated assets

Consolidated profit before tax

Indicator

Capital adequacy ratio (CAR)

Earnings per share (EPS)
Dividend rate (%)
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DongA Bank’s operations review in 2011 (CONTINUED)
DONGA BANK’S TOTAL CONSOLIDATED ASSETS

DONGA BANK’S TOTAL DEPOSITS

Billion VND

Billion VND

07

07

27,376
34,713

08

08

42,520

09

65,548

11

29,797
36,714

09

55,873

10

21,656

47,756

10

48,120

11

▲CAGR = 24%

▲CAGR = 22%

DONGA BANK’S TOTAL EXPOSURE

DONGA BANK’S PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Billion VND

Billion VND

07

07

18,059
25,571

08

08

34,687

09

09

38,436

10

44,003

11

▲CAGR = 25%

NUMBER OF OUTLETS
Diem

07

107
148

08

173

09

218

10

227

11

▲CAGR = 21%
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10
11

454
703
788
858
1,255

▲CAGR = 29%

07/2011: DongA Bank introduced new brand positioning

“THE BANK OF RESPONSIBILITY, THE BANK OF HEARTS”

Highlights of year 2011

Branding
The individual financial behavior research report released
by the ACNielsen in the 3rd quarter of 2011 showed that
DongA Bank had its Brand Equity Index – BEI ranked
2nd with 1.9 points in the Vietnam market. The BEI is an
indicator computed on the basis of customers’ answers to
such inquiries as “Your favorite bank”, “The bank that you will
refer to others” and “The bank whose service you will use at
any costs”. A banker with a good BEI tends to become the
choice of great number of customers as their major provider
in financial activities transactions.
In the 1st half of 2011, DongA Bank continued to play an active
role in pro-education campaigns, thus promoting its brand as
one the socially responsible brand among the public. The
“Writings of Gratitude Contest 2010-2011” held in coordination
with the Central Committee of the Youth Union and the

Ministry of Education and Training received an impressive
number of entries of 65,000. This helped bring the total
number of papers after two years of the contest to 110,000. In
this second year, the contest’s rule allows the participants to
express their gratitude to not only teachers but also to anyone
who participants think have given them precious lessons.
“Supporting the teacher” reality show, held in partnership
with HCM City Television, Sai Gon Tiep thi Newspaper
and the Education Development Fund became everyone’s
favorite show that featured meaningful stories of outstanding
teachers. The “Honoring Top University Graduates”
program, held for the 3rd time, was the only program that
honor university graduates with outstanding achievements.
As the initiator and sponsor of the mentioned campaigns,
DongA Bank hoped, more than anything else, to contribute
to the nation’s education by upholding the best traditional
values of the Vietnamese people.

(*) According to Nielsen Vietnam’s Personal Finance Moniter (Individual Random Sampling of 1,800 male and female aged 18 - 50 years old, household income band
ABCD, financial decision makers for personal finance use at HCMC and Hanoi). Survey was conducted during July - September 2011 by Nielsen Vietnam.
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Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Since the 3rd quarter of 2011, DongA Bank’s branding
management has been experiencing a sweeping evolution
with the new brand positioning “The Bank of Responsibility,
the Bank of Hearts” as well as introducing of the Bank’s
Vision, Missions and Core Values for the next 20 years of
development. With this new positioning, the two images of
“responsibility” and “hearts” have been at the core of many
of DongA Bank’s activities: the biggest promotion campaign
of the year “Millions hearts – One belief” showing gratitude
to customers who have been with the Bank over the past
19 years; the “Hearts of love” program that aimed to bring
a better tomorrow to disadvantaged children in society; the
“Autumn of Love” Campaign which offered scholarships to
students throughout the country.
As a distinct feature in it branding activities, DongA Bank
initiated a breakthrough in its way of doing marketing in
order to reach out more to its customers. Now the Bank
not only provides financial services to customers but also

take care of their spiritual life. Featuring the slogan “Enjoy
and relax, we are at your service”, street art performance
series called “I love sharing” introduced in November 2011
has been scheduled for every weekend at public parks to
bring customers enjoyment. Also in November 2011, with an
ambition to position DongA Bank as the Bank of technology
and convenience, DongA Bank – ANIWHERE BANKING
thematic campaign was introduced. ANIWHERE BANKING
is also DongA Bank’s modernized way of providing service
to customers: at DongA Bank, banking transactions are
possible at anytime, anywhere.
With extensive branding activities and the wide coverage
that DongA Bank maintained on media, the Bank’s PR
value in 2011 was over VND 153 billion, ranking 2nd among
banks in Vietnam, both local and foreign. It also won several
awards from reknown institutions as well as from valuable
nomination of consumers.
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Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Technology achievements
The year 2011 marked the first efforts in DongA Bank’s
development of private cloud computing. The management
made bold invetsments in the implementation of the “Data
Center Restructuring” Project in preparation for the private
cloud computing in 2012-2013. Also, the IT Center completed
the implementation of IT service management and supply
processes according to ITIL standard by successfully
applying the BMC Service Desk software. This is the first
important step in building the IT Center into a professional
service supplier for the whole system.
AN ANALYSIS OF HIGHLIGHTS IN TECHNOLOGY
INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
The data center restructuring project, which was launched
between July 2011 and September 2011, virtualized almost
80% of DongA Bank’s present IT infrastructure based on
modern technologies of global giants such as Cisco, EMC,
VMware, HP, and so on. This has helped the Bank slash as
much as 50% of investment costs and up to 25% of space
dedicated to equipment installation while increasing by 50%
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the number of virtual servers, thus making the supply of
infrastructure services faster by minutes compared with the
day or month before virtualization.
Thanks to this project, the Bank’s data shall be continuously
protected every millisecond using the CDP (continuous
data protection – i.e. data is replicated by video instead of
photo taking) technology, which means that all data can
be promptly recovered after having been lost as a result of
accidental failures.
In addition to the restructuring of the data center, the IT
Center also basically completed processes of Information
Technology Service Management (ITSM) and brought the
same into application, thus enabling the operation of IT
systems as per international standards and ensuring high
stability and security.
In parallel with the formulation of ITSM processes, the IT
Center gradually built a number of main processes as part
of the information safety policy manager as per ISO 27001
and PCI-DSS standards, paving the way for roll-out in 2012
and 2013.

Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)
THE APPLICATION OF TECHNOLOGY INTO PRODUCT
AND SERVICE DEVELOPMENT
DongA Bank prides itself on pioneering in the application
of information technology, providing customers with a
wide variety of transactions on e-banking channels and
continuously working towards offering even more premium
services with optimal convenience and security for
customers.
Building on previous achievements, in 2011, DongA Bank
continued to partner with many providers of online payment
service to launch multiple new utilities on such channels
as SMS Banking, Mobile Banking and Internet Banking.
DongA Bank was also the first bank that released such
unique services as DongA Mobile Internet Banking that
supports Internet Banking on mobile phones, DongA Mobile
Internet for Iphone with GPRS/wifi connectivity, and so
on. Thanks to such efforts, in 2011, the Bank’s e-banking
business recorded impressive performances: the number
of customers performing transfer and payment transactions
(including Transfer, Online Payment, Top-up, Bill Payment,
Prepaid Card Purchase, etc.) reached 850,000, up by 88.5%
against 2010, the product portfolio now includes 30 items,
27 partnerships have been established and the average
transaction volume is some VND 410 billion per month.

In 2011, the IT Center made full use of the data center
restructuring project to train the staff. Besides, a number of
employees were sent abroad for advanced courses for the
purpose of better operation and launching of new features
on the current system.
Thanks to continuous training, the IT Center now has a full
control of new technologies and can confidently develop new
features without having to outsource to external contractors.
Many of the IT’s employees have brilliantly passed
international IT tests and win internationally recognized
qualifications for such Oracle Database Management
Certificate, the Cisco Network Management Certificate,
Qualification on Linux Operating System Management, Java
Programming, and so on.

ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE YEAR




TEAM OF “IT MEN”
DongA Bank’s IT Center is a team of young, dynamic and
energetic individuals. Staff aged between 20 and 30 makes
up alomost 70% of the total 90 IT staff throughout the country.

Top Prize in “Students and Information Security 2011”
held by VNISA.
“The Most Favorite Website and E-Commerce Service
2010” (an annual award jointly organized by Ho Chi
Minh Department of Industry and Commerce and the
Southern Office of Vietnam E-Commerce Association)
Ho Chi Minh Municipal Information & Communication
Award 2011 (a prominent municipal award in Information
Technology, conferred annually on institutions and
individuals with outstanding services, products and
achievements for the development of IT in HCM City).

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

35

Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Outstanding retail products and services
New products and services in 2011
IMPLEMENTATION OF
SPECIAL TARGETS

CREDIT

PRODUCTS

FOR

In a goodwill to side with fishermen during high-sea catch,
particularly in the context of numerous risks facing them,
DongA Bank reserved VND 20 billion and worked with the Sai
Gon Tiep Thi (Saigon Marketing) Newspaper to research on
fishermen and subsequently extended credits to fishermen
households in the central region under the “Supporting
fishermen” campaign.
Apart from this, a credit program called “Loans for Policyfavored borrowers” was also designed and piloted in the
Mekong Delta Region.
SHORT-TERM CREDIT CARD
Short-term credit card is one of the facilities that DongA Bank
offers to individual customers who travel aboard on business
or as a tourist. Customers may use their savings books or
pay a deposit to be granted with a credit card. After the trip,
if the customer no longer wishes to use the card, the credit
card can be easily terminated.
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SALE OF FOREIGN CURRENCY CASH TO INDIVIDUAL
CUSTOMERS
In the early months of 2011, when access to foreign currency
cash was strictly limited due to tensions on the forex market,
DongA Bank issued a notice on eligible buyers, limits on
amount and applicable currencies.
SERVICE
ABROAD

PACKAGE

FOR

STUDENTS

STUDYING

With a view to supporting local families in the preparation
for their children’s studying abroad, DongA Bank introduced
a package of services and products which covered loans,
financial proof using deposit book, sale of foreign currency
cash and extension of standby credit limit, and so on. In
terms of forex, DongA Bank will also sell foreign currencies
to students on the basis of notification of tuition fees at a
reasonable exchange rate.
IMPLEMENTATION OF AUTOMATIC PAYMENT SERVICE
WITH NEW PARTNERS
The Bank’s new partners included VNPT Quang Nam,
Ho Chi Minh University of Industry, Da Nang College of
Commerce, Thai Nguyen Medical College, VNPT Tay Ninh,
Tra Vinh University.

Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Prominent services and products
DongA MULTI-FUNCTION CARD
According to statistics of the Vietnam Card Association
(VCA), by the end of 2010, there were 31.7 billion cards
issued in the local market, including 28.5 million local ones.
DongA Bank now ranks 3rd among the issuers of local cards
with 5.1 million pieces.
By the end of 2011: the total number of cards issued by
DongA Bank was 5.9 million.
ATM SYSTEM
DongA Bank is the owner of ATMs with the most modern
features available in Vietnam, typically TK21 ATM and Gold
ATM. These devices represent the pride of “modernizing of
banking with Vietnamese intellect”.
In addition to common functions of a conventional ATM, the
TK21 ATM is capable of accepting cash (both VND and a
number of foreign currencies) as deposits and providing
forex transactions for foreign tourists. When customers
deposit cash with the TK21 ATM, their account shall be
credited immediately and the balance shall be available for
use via the card shortly. In particular, the TK21 ATM can
return ineligible notes as well as refund change in case of
top-up with prepaid card.

DongA Bank’s Gold ATM was the first of its kind in Vietnam
and the second in the world. The Gold ATM was modified
from the conventional ATM but integrated with a gold
selling device. As a result, in addition to the purchase of
gold, customers can perform other transactions such as
withdrawal, transfer, balance inquiry, and so on as on
conventional ATMs. What is distinct frorm the conventional
ATM is that the entire body of the Gold ATM is covered with
the gold colour while the screen interface and gold accepting
slot are designed distinctively.
The modern and multi-function ATM system has
contributed to the promotion of a dynamic and active
image of DongA Bank in terms of technology in the local
finance and banking industry.
MOBILE BANKING
Mobile Banking is a transaction channel that possesses
outstanding advantages in terms of security and convenience
compared with SMS-supported transactions: no need
to remember SMS syntax, no worry about disclosure of
password due to saved messages, and codified data.
The channel supports diversified financial transactions:
Balance inquiry, transfer, online payment, bill payment,
e-topup, transaction statement, etc.
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Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

BILL PAYMENT

E-PAYROLL

DongA Bank’s bill payment service allows customers to
make payment of electricity, water, telephone, Internet bills
and tuition fees via electronic channels or standing orders
instead of counter transactions.

DongA Bank was the first bank in Vietnam that provided
e-payroll service, and so far only a few local banks can do
the same.

In order to use this service, customers may either use their
mobile phones or log on the Internet on their computers to
access the https://ebanking.dongabank.com.vn/login.jsp
website.
In case of standing orders, customers merely need to
perform one-time registration with DongA Bank to authorize
the Bank to make periodic payments to beneficiaries. In
addition, counter transactions are also of great convenience
as DongA Bank operates 24-hour transactions offices that
are available everyday until 7.30 pm.
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Thanks to the e-payroll service, enterprises may perform
the payment of salaries to employees without coming
to the bank. In addition to the simplicity of usage and the
high speed of processing, this utility offers companies topnotched confidentiality as only authorized users are provided
access to salary information.
As of the end of November 2011, DongA Bank had 16,495
corporate customers using the Bank’s e-payroll service with
the monthly number of individuals receiving credit notice
being over 500,000. The average traffic of payments per
month is 697,307 and the monthly average payroll volume is
over VND 2,000 billion.

Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Promotional campaigns
PROMOTIONAL CAMPAIGNS FOR DEPOSITS
DongA Bank’s increasing deposits in 2011 contributed to
bringing the Bank’s totals assets to VND 65,466 billion.
Good performance in deposits allowed DongA Bank to
acquire sufficient funds for credits while satisfying financial
indicators including liquidity, thus maintaining stability and
sustainability in growth.
Choosing DongA Bank for their deposits, customers
actually deposit their trust with the Bank. As such, deposit
promotion programs are designed on the basis of a profound
understanding of cutomers themselves. In the context of
deposit caps imposed by the SBV, it is natural that customers
will only deposit their money with the bank that they truly
trust.

Following the success of campaigns in 2010, in 2011,
DongA Bank continued to carry out a number of popular
programs such as “Gởi niềm tin, Nẩy tài lộc” (Deposit Trust
and Win Fortune), “Triệu trái tim, một niềm tin” (Million
hearts, one faith), “Mùa thu yêu thương” (Autumn of love),
“Tiết kiệm vạn phát, Xuân mới an khang” (Savings of
fortune, New spring of Well-being), and so on. That most
deposit campaigns reached targets prematurely showed
the full trust that customers deposited with DongA Bank – a
banker of high viability and safety.
THE “RECOMMEND A FRIEND” CAMPAIGN
This was a campaign designed to spread out the news
about good utilities coming from DongA eBanking and
automatic payment service. A customer who referred his
relative or acquaintance would have a chance of winning
attractive gifts.
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Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Retail banking orientations
TOWARD THE STATUS OF A RETAIL BANK
With a view to becoming the best retail bank in Vietnam,
DongA Bank has been improving both service quality and
technological performance to provide an increasing number
of products and services that best cater to customers’
demands. Only in 2011, the portfolio of retail products was
extended to include short-term credit card, bill payment,
housing loan, car loan, and product package for individual
customers.
Special importance was attached to the investment in
technology-intensive producst and services, notably
external transfer via ATM. Besides, the introduction of
ANIWHERE BANKING in 2011 also marked another step

40

DongA Bank

in fully covering customers’ demands with an increasing
variety of choices.
Such efforts have resulted in encouraging achievements for
the Retail Banking Division. Transaction amounts associated
with individual customers have reached high levels: debit
movements on local debit cards average at over VND 8,800
billionper month; payroll through-ut at VND 2,000 billion per
month, eBanking over VND 400 billion per month, and bill
payment over VND 27 billion per month.
In 2012 as well as the next years, DongA Bank will endeavor
to thoroughly change both the Bank’s mindset and course of
action in order to win customers’ hearts, thus materlizing the
“customer experience” philosophy. The development of retail
services shall use customer experience as the basis when
creating new ideas.

Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Corporate banking highlights in 2011
STABLIZING ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
The year 2011 marked the Corporate Banking Division’s
sweeping changes in organization as well as staff building in
preparation for sustainable steps in the near future.
One of the priorities of the CBD in the year was to shape
a well-defined organization and form a uniform coordination
between the Head Office and the network. Recruitments
and employment were performed by making use of qualified
personnel from outlets. The teams in the CBD are dedicated
to specific regions; they work with the network in developing
local corporate custoemrs and serve as the contact for
receiving information, providing advisory and giving
instructions to the network in terms of corporate customers.
The CBD also performs customer assessment and
provides policy for most of the corporate customers who
are dealing with DongA Bank in such a way as to ensure
synchronousness and timeliness.
In addition, the CBD has also standardized and computerized
operations processes in order to improve operational
efficiency and complete the corporate customer database
for sake of well-timed statistics which are important for
policy-making and centralized authorization. Apart from
this, the internal credit rating for corporate customers, jointly
developed by DongA Bank and Ernst & Young Vietnam, has
been successfully put into operation.
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All these evolutions have been taken place so as to ensure
the smooth operation of the Bank’s activities while securing
risk management and quality improvement. Customers’
requests are thanks to that processed more promptly while
customer care is better ensured.
The centralized processing
international payment

model

for

For the purpose of specialization, minimized risks and
improved productivity, in 2011, the CBD worked to complete
the model of centralized processing for international payment
activities. Adopting this model, outlets only received customers’
files, leaving all operations including L/C opening, file
registration, document checking and payment to be handled
by the International Payment Center at the Head Office. This
model has demonstrated advantages in terms of professional
processes, uniform and improved service quality, enhanced
productivity and slashed staff sizing in outlets. Besides, this
has enabled to Bank to intensify supersion and quality control
in international payment activities.
Thanks to its increasingly professional international payment,
in late 2011, DongA Bank had formed a network of over 1,000
correspondents worldwide. Also in 2011, the International
Payment Department won STP (Straight-Through-Processing)
awards from renowned global bankers such as Bank of New
York, Mellon - USA, Wells Fargo - U.S.A, and Citibank - U.S.A.

Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Customer care
In 2011, DongA Bank paid special attention to customer
care. By formulating criteria for classification of corporate
customers, it now has the foundation for making appropriate
policies for each category of customers.
Customer care was uniformly carried to from Head Office
to outlets via dedicated teams in charge of corporate
customers. These teams have served as the bridge between
customers, branches and the Head Office for the common
purpose of customer satisfaction.
Facing a turbulent economy in 2011 with hiking prices of
inout materials, shrinking market, and volatile policies, local
businesses met with more difficulties than ever before.
DongA Bank lent a helping hand to the business community
by providing them with the fastest access to funding. In
particular, the Bank offered a preferential lending policy

to businesses operating in manufacturing and export. In
addition to timely provided funds, DongA Bank took the
initiative in working with customers to find out causes,
propose solutions and provide advisory for each commercial
deal in order to help them overcome difficulties. Always
“ready to accompany customers through hardships”,
DongA Bank has demonstrated the core values that it is
pursuing, i.e. responsibility, humanity and companion.
Corporate banking orientations
Corporate banking has been the major contributor to the Bank’s
revenues. In 2012, the CBD will focus on the development of
new products and serviceswith new and competitive features.
DongA Bank will also focus on small and medium enterprises
(SMEs) and provide tailored product packages for various types
of customers. All such efforts aim to improve DongA Bank’s
services both interms of quantity and quality, thus fully equipping
customers with the Bank’s products and services.
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Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Human resources and training

TRAINING

OBJECTIVES OF HUMAN RESOURCES TRAINING

For DongA Bank, the budget for training is never considered
expenses. It is rather an investment in human resources. As
a result, in 2011, training was performed with remarkable
efficiency.

DongA Bank has always attached great importance to human
resources, considering these one of the most valuable assets
for long-term competitiveness and sustainable development.
Therefore, the management of the Bank has been paying a
lot of attention to the maintenance and development of human
resources as well as promoting labor relationships and staff
attachment.
In August 2011, DongA Bank renewed its HR management
along new orientations under which the HR Management
Division was formed consisting of three distinctive
departments: the Operating HR Department, the Training
Department and the Organization Development Department.
DongA Bank’s objectives are to maintain and develop existing
resources, attract further high-quality resources, and promote
HR activities in parallel with the Bank’s business development.
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In early 2011, five training sessions were launched for
Managers of Transaction Offices in the whole system. The
contents of training covered know how on implementing
business plans and treasury management, providing sales
skills both in order to maintain existing customers and
developing new ones.
Another course called “Leadership Capacity Building
Program” was implemented in 8 waves with nearly 300
participants lasting from August to November 2011. The
course was successful and well received by members of
the Board of Management, heads of outlets as well as Head
Office departments.

Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

The participant-centered methodology adopted in such
courses was a considerable change: a class was held
without a trainer; instead, the facilitator, the CEO himself,
would raise common questions or have participants listen to
a song with questionable content, thus creating a comfortable
atmosphere and environment for them to talk freely. Thanks
to this, everbody had a chance to share their experiences
about daily behavior, family issues and orientations of career
development with DongA Bank. Working with a sense of
responsibility and enthusiasm, staff members will achieve

much better performance and contribute to the sustainable
development of the Bank.
Building on such success, in December 2011, the HR and
Training Department built a system of cornerstone viewpoints
for training activities in 2012 under which all employees
would have to undergo the Bank’s systematic and welldefined training process. The content and methodology for
each group of trainees shall vary but must include three parts:
AWARENESS – SKILLS – PROFESSIONAL KNOW HOW.
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Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)
RECRUITMENT
DongA Bank aims to recruit high-quality people for the Bank’s development in accordance with its criteria of Core Competencies
and Fundemental Ethics.
HR statistics compared with previous years:

Year

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Quantity

2,228

3,138

3,691

4,254

4,368

62.27%

40.84%

17.62%

15.25%

2.68%

% change

As can be seen, in 2011, DongA Bank had the smallest number of recruitments. This is impressive considering the fact that this
year recorded outstanding business performance with a year-on-year profit growth of 46%.

ORGANIZATION DEVELOPMENT
Aiming to become a strategic partner of the network, the HR
Management Division in 2011 accompanied the outlets in
organization activities.
A team of dedicated HR staff was formed including members
of the HR and Training Department who worked at the very
unit that they were in charge of. By doing this, they became
the bridge between the network and the Head Office in
efficiently communicating the Bank’s HR and training policy
and accompanying the outlets’ business.
The system of Job Description (JD) for each group of job title
was formulated and frequently reviewed to ensure all the staff
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knew and understood their duties. Besides, the project of
building Core Competencies and Functional Competencies
in coordination with Deloitte initially defined the system
of necessary competenticies for each group of titles, thus
providing a basis for training and capacity building programs.
In particular, in 2011, DongA Bank adopted the policy
of salary budget assignment to each unit. This policy
has helped the Bank’s units define their staff sizing and
implement the “performance-based pay” principle and
ensure competitiveness in employment:
The average income per capita of DongA Bank in 2011 was
VND 8.2 million per month, up by 30% against 2010. This is
a positive signal for its recognized human resources.

Highlights of year 2011 (CONTINUED)

Union and social-community activities
DongA Bank’s Communist Party Cell was form on November
26th 1993, one year after the Bank’s incorporation, followed
by the Trade Union and the Youth Union. This spoke volume
for the importance that the management attached to union
activities. The Communist Party Cell of the Bank was even
promoted to General Party Committee on September 20th
2006 and became part of Ho Chi Minh Municipal Party
Committee. The body now has 170 Party members and 11
subsidiaries throughout the country. Especially, with 48 new
members admitted, the year 2011 was one with the largest
number of newcomers.
The Executive Committee of the Communist Party Cell
attached importance to political and ideological education
for party members and staff, notably the movement of
following the late President Ho Chi Minh’s example,
the grassroots democracy by-laws; the anti-corruption
guidelines, the anti-money laundering campaigns, and
so on. The Party Committee and the management dealt
strictly with violations and awarded teams and individuals
of exceptional performance. Attention was paid to staff’s
living conditions, pay rise and other favorable policies in
employees’ interest.
In 2011, the Youth Union saw robust development with
increasing efficiency. Campaigns and movements were
launched with practical effects on the Bank’s business. The
Trade Union also evolved in tune with the Bank’s growth.

The roles of the Trade Union and the Youth Union became
recognized for arousing dedication and enthusiasm among
the staff.
In terms of charity, DongA Bank continued to come to the
relief of the poor and the disadvantaged. Visits were paid and
gifts were presented to poor patients and children while Fund
for the poor, Fund for workers, Fund for Truong Sa (Spratly
Inslands Soldiers) were initiated. Especially, the annually
held blood donation and teachers support programs helped
created a profound humanity among the community as well
as a strong association with the brand slogan of “The Bank
of Responsibility, the Bank of Heart”. The total budget for
charity actitivies in 2011 was over VND 1.4 billion (excluding
the “Supporting Teachers” and other programs implemented
at outlets).
ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2011
The Party Committee of DongA Bank was recognized with
“Transparency and Solidity” for the 5th consecutive time
since 2007.
The Trade Union also won the Banner of Excellence
Recognition 2011 from the General Federation Trade Union
of Vietnam and Ho Chi Minh Municipal Trade Union.
The Youth Union was awarded with Banner of Excellence
Recognition 2011from the Municipal Youth Union of Banking
Industry and an Honor from the Central Youth Union.
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DEVELOPING
CHANGE
Common ambitions lead to inspiration

ORIENTATIONS IN 2012
Major Targets In 2012
Medium and Long-Term Development Strategy
	Operational Solutions

•
•
•

ORIENTATIONS IN 2012
In 2012, the local ecnonomy is expected to remain in difficulty. The Government’s priorities remain inflation control and macroeconomic stability. The SBV will stick to its stringent and flexible monetary policy with the growth of total means of payment ranging
between 14% and 16%, credit growth between 15% and 17%, interest rates and exchange rates being kept an reasonable levels
and in tune with macro-economic balance as well as evolutions on the monetary and forex market.
Given the results achieved in 2011 and the regulator’s expected moves, the BOD and BOM set the following targets for 2012:

MAJOR TARGETS IN 2012

Target

Result in 2011

Target for 2012

% change

Total assets

65,548

100,000

52%

Deposits

48,120

86,000

78%

Exposure

44,003

50,600

15%

NPL

1.69%

< 1.5%

Profit before tax

1,255

1,500

20%

Charter capital

4,500

6,000

33%

16%

15%

Dividend rate (%)

MEDIUM AND LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY
DongA Bank was incorporated in 1992. After almost 20 years
of operation, the Bank has made a lot of achievements. In
face of both challenges and opportunities, DongA Bank
has resolutely made changes in order to respond to the
requirements of business. In 2011, the BOD adopted the
development strategy for 2012 and vision until 2020 when
the Bank aims to become a leading finance and banking
group in Vietnam, reaching out to the global and winning the
love and trust of customers.
“INNOVATION AND DEVELOPMENT” is the theme for
DongA Bank’s activities in 2012. The orientations for the
Bank’s business activities in 2012 are as follows:
■
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In 2012, DongA Bank continues with the transformation
of organization and specialization in the Retail Banking
Division, the Corporate Banking Division, the Operations
Division, the Supervision Division, and so on in order
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■

■
■

■

■
■
■
■
■

to meet international norms. The responsibilities of
dedicated units in the Bank are to be defined.
In order to implement its 2012 business plan, DongA Bank
will have business development and system basis building
programs which will cover action plans of the Head Office’s
Divisions and Departments.
Continue with the salary budget allocation strategy to
both outlets and Head Office’s Divisions.
Select the strategic consultant and, in April 2012,
commence working sessions with the strategic
consultative committee.
In the 3dr Quarter of 2012, formulate and carry out a
number of functional strategies such as HR management,
risk management, investment strategy and IT strategy.
Continue to build and promote the corporate culture.
Rearrange the ATM system.
Develop activities for individual customers.
Adopt a diverse policy for development of corporate
customers.
Efficiently implement operational processes, improve
service quality.

ORIENTATIONS IN 2012 (CONTINUED)

OPERATIONAL SOLUTIONS

Forex trading

DEPOSIT ACTIVITIES

Gradually develop new investment banking and currency
trading operations such as currency and exchange rate
derivatives in order to maximize profits and minimize risks.

The core task of the whole system is to intensify deposit
mobilization. The solution to this question is to improve
the quality of forecast for the purpose of working out
proper orientations and policies in terms of interest rates.
Importance is attached to the development fof relationships
with big corporations in addition to SMEs and individuals.
Specific features and market evolutions in each locality are
to be studied properly for the purpose of efficient proper
product development.
USAGE OF FUNDS
Strengthen the Bank’s financial capabilities via the
restructuring of assets and development of banking services.
Credit activities
Credit growth is to be kept in line with the regulator’s directions.
Growth rates targets are to be defined for each quarter as
well as the whole year for the network and strictly perform
reporting as required by the SBV. Credits made in foreign
currency together with loans made to each industry are to be
controlled. Internal policies are to be reviewed for compliance
with the law, safety in credit activities and minimized risks.

Products and services
Innovating and developing banking products and services,
especially e-banking; promote corporate identity, attract new
customers and increase profits.
Customer service quality
In the context of fierce competition in the banking industry,
DongA Bank attaches importance to the improvement of
customer service quality. The Bank is to: build a standardized
image of front-office staff and provide training thereto in the
whole system; implement the training on communication
skills for staff members; develop a modern customer care
channel via Contact Center, which shall provide accurate
and prompt information and advisory in order to promote
the prestige of DongA Bank; provide training and re-training
on banking products and services to ensure staff are wellequipped with proper knowledge of products and services
as well as customer demands for the purpose of improved
sales, advisory and customer service; and gradually build
a mechanism for service quality supervision at each outlet.
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CONNECTING
CHANGE
General desire for success

SUBSIDIARIES
DongA Money Transfer
DongA Securities and DongA Fund Management

•
•

SUBSIDIARIES

DongA Money Transfer
The year 2011 was considered a “golden season” for inward
transfers. The total transfer amount of USD 9 billion kept
Vietnam among the world’s top 16 recipients. In South-east
Asia, Vietnam ranks second only to the Philippines. As one
of contributors to such amount, DongA Money Transfer
recorded USD 1.52 billion, which made it one of the market
leaders in 2011.
The precursor of DongA Money Transfer was the
Remittance Department of DongA Bank with a dozens
of staff. After 10 years, from 1991 to 2011, the entity has
evolved into a big enterprise with over 200 staff with 80
partners in 200 countries and territories. In particular,
global transfer partners have recognized DongA Money
Transfer’s professional service quality with such honors
as “the Best Vietnam Agent” and the “Best agent for
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co-op marketing initiatives” awards in 2011. In addition
to global recognition, the Company has also won local
customers’ trust with the second consecutive “Vietnam’s
Strong Brands 2011” Award.
For the purpose of providing premium customer service,
DongA Money Transfer has paid attention to the
improvement of service quality, notably the shortening
of period for payment so that customers in urban areas
may receive their money within 1 to 3 hours instead of 12
hours. In other provinces and cities, the time for payment
is also reduced to 6 hours. Especially, the counter service
allows customers to receive cash within 3 to 10 minutes.
Besides, the home payment service is the selling point that
differentiates DongA Money Transfer’s advantage given the
fact that payment can be made at home even on holidays
and 7 days a week. Currently, the network of DongA Money
Transfer has covered all the country’s provinces and cities

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

with 232 outlets, which helps customers save time and travel
expenses in their transactions.
Apart from the maintenance of service quality, DongA Money
Transfer has also endeavored to diversify new forms of
payment to meet customers’ increasing demands. In 2011,
the payment of remittance into customers’ accounts was
introduced, thus giving them one more option.
Such achievements have resulted from the Company’s
research and application of modern technologies such as SMS
notices of transfer, the improvement of the E- Money system
with several new features which help shorten the period of
processing. Besides, opinion polls have also been conducted
to obtain feedback and deal with inquiries. Such polls have
demonstrated 99.9% of surveyed customers are satisfied with
the Company’s service quality as well as processing time.

Not only a good performer in terms of business, Dong A
Money Transfer has also actively participated in social
and charity activities such as giving Mid-Autumn gifts to
suburban children, holding annual fund-raising activities in
favor of flood-affected people, giving lunar new year gifts to
disadvantaged household, and. These deeds originate from
the goodwill of the Company’s staff and their wish to share
difficulties with needy people.
The money transfer market in 2012 is projected to develop
better with modern modes of payment. As such, DongA
Money Transfer is making technological investments in order
to acquire approach to state-of-the-art means of payment,
thus promoting the image of DongA Money Transfer on
global market while maintaining its local lead.
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DongA Securities and DongA Fund Management

AN OVERVIEW OF MARKET HIGHLIGHTS AND
REGULATOR’S POLICIES, BOTH POSITIVE AND
NEGATIVE
The ailing local stock market in 2011 exerted huge negative
impacts on securities companies’ business. At the end of
2011, the market’s barometer VN-Index was down by 27.46%
while the HNX-Index dropped by 48.6% against 2010.
Liquidity was extremely poor with the average transaction
value standing at only 40% of the 2010 value. The average
value of each trading session was between VND 500
billion and 600 billion compared with the record-height of
some VND 5,000 billion during the market’s peak. Facing
numerous difficulties, securities companies’s expenses went
high while revenues shrank, leading to downsize staff and
shrinking network.
The industry’s regulators including the Ministry of Finance,
the SBV, and the State Securities Commission endeavored to
revive the market with a series of guidelines and regulations
aimed at diversifying stock market activities.
Despite the current market downturn, DongA Securities and
Fund Management (DAS) maintained its drive for sustainable
development and worked toward a permanent place among
the Top 10 players in terms of brokerage and investment
banking. It will also continue to develop experienced staff
who possesses profound knowledge in multiple fields as well

56

DongA Bank

as market exposure for the final objective of better customer
service.
In 2011, in addition to the two existing branches Hanoi and
Cho Lon, DAS launched District 10 Transaction Office in
March 2011 and Vung Tau Branch in April 2011. Authorized
by the State Securities Commission to perform margin
trading transactions, DAS is among the 37 companies out of
the total 105 authorized so far.
DAS is now one of the leading providers of investment
banking, financial advisory and corporate administration.
In particular, it is the first company that pilots advisory for
restructuring, equitization and IPO for companies operating
in such areas as insurance, water supply, and urban
engineering. DAS is always customers’ top choice for
equitization, IPO, auction, and so on with notable customers
being SCIC, Ho Chi Minh Municipal People’s Committee,
Vung Tau Municipal People’s Committee, etc.
Since its incorporation, DAS has provided brokerage service
to hundreds of thousands of customers, and investment
banking, financial advisory and corporate administration
services to over 400 enterprises throughout the country.
Besides, DAS has also been honored by the Ministry of
Finance, the SBV and Ho Chi Minh Municipal People’s
Committee for its contributions in terms of investment
banking and financial service.

DongA Securities and DongA Fund Management (CONTINUED)
Aiming to provide high-quality and highly competitive products
and services, apply modern technologies and integrate the
optimal features, DAS has successfully implemented and
upgraded many technologies to help customer perform
their transactions with high speed and satisfaction. Among
these, the online stock price quotes and the technical
analysis chart are the two remarkable highlights that offer
customers access to instant order information. Besides, the
online transaction website with outstanding features such
as advance, online transfer, transfer with SMS credit notice,
multiple accounts managers, etc. with high security are also
available.
In late 2011, DAS made a technological breakthrough by
releasing a new stock trading system whose exceptional
components include DongA Online and DongA Pro
applications with multiple features for investors.

For the purpose of sustainable development, DAS always
encourages its staff to improve professional knowledge and
update information in order to do their job most efficiently.
All the staff are equipped with sufficient knowledge of stock
and stock market and all of them hold practice certificates
issued by the State Securities Commission. Internal
training is frequently held to promote creativity as well as
communication and problem-solving skills of the staff.
In parallel with training, DAS also attaches importance to the
dissemination of DongA Bank’s 8 core values and corporate
culture. Seminars and discussions on corporate culture
are held periodically to help staff adapt to the corporate
environment and form a shared objective of developing
individual career as well building DAS into a major player in
to stock industry.

A number of indicators:

Item

2010 (VND)

2011 (VND)

176,916,388,153

115,722,313,080

2. Gross profit

35,778,812,491

10,617,100,478

3. Net profit

30,796,941,622

5,626,684,891

4. Total profit before tax

30,792,469,423

5,626,684,891

5. Profit after tax

27,475,882,239

5,626,684,891

121

129

1. Revenues

6. Number of staff (persons)
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DongA Bank

GENERAL INFORMATION
THE BANK
Dong A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (hereinafter referred to as “the Bank”) is a commercial joint stock
bank established in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.
The Bank is established and operated in accordance with Banking License No. 0009/NH-GP issued by
the State Bank of Vietnam (“SBV”) on 27 March 1992 and Decision No. 135/QD-UB issued by the People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City on 16 April 1995. The Bank’s operational duration is 99 years.
The Bank’s principal activities are to provide banking services throughout Vietnam including mobilizing
and receiving short, medium and long-term deposits from organizations and individuals; making short,
medium and long-term loans and advances to organizations and individuals based on the nature and
capability of the Bank’s sources of capital; providing foreign exchange transactions, international trade
financial services, discount of commercial papers, bonds and other valuable papers; providing settlement
services and other banking services allowed by the State Bank of Vietnam.
The Bank’s head office is located at 130 Phan Dang Luu Street, Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh City,
Vietnam. As at 31 December 2011, the Bank had one (1) head office, one (1) transaction center, two hundred and twenty six (226) branches, transaction offices, transaction units and saving funds.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The members of the Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and at the date
of this report are as follows:
Name

Title

Date of Appointment

Mr Pham Van Bu

Chairman

Appointed on 10 June 2010

Ms Vu Thi Vang

Deputy Chairman

Appointed on 10 June 2010

Mr Dang Phuoc Dua

Deputy Chairman

Appointed on 10 June 2010

Mr Tran Phuong Binh

Member

Appointed on 10 June 2010

Mr Trang Thanh Suong

Member

Appointed on 10 June 2010

Mr Nguyen Dinh Truong

Member

Appointed on 10 June 2010

Mr Tran Van Dinh

Member

Appointed on 10 June 2010

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
The members of the Board of Supervisors during the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and at the
date of this report are as follows:
Full name

Title

Date of Appointment

Ms Nguyen Thi Cuc

Chief Supervisor

Appointed on 10 June 2010

Mr Nguyen Vinh Son

Member

Appointed on 10 June 2010

Ms Phan Thi To Loan

Member

Appointed on 10 June 2010
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GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
MANAGEMENT AND CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
The members of Management and Chief Accountant during the financial year ended 31 December 2011
and at the date of this report are as follows:
Name

Title

Date of Appointment

Mr Tran Phuong Binh

General Director

Appointed on 25 March 1998

Mr Nguyen Huu Chinh

Deputy General Director

Appointed on 24 June 1997

Ms Nguyen Thi Kim Xuyen

Deputy General Director

Appointed on 15 January 2001

Ms Nguyen Thi Ngoc Van

Deputy General Director

Appointed on 15 January 2001

Mr Nguyen An

Deputy General Director

Appointed on 20 March 2008

Mr Tran Dao Vu

Deputy General Director

Appointed on 2 March 2009

Mr Le Tri Thong

Deputy General Director

Appointed on 1 June 2008

Ms Vo Thi Kim Anh

Chief Accountant

Appointed on 1 October 1999

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
The legal representative of the Bank during the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and at the date
of this report is Mr Pham Van Bu - Chairman.
According to Decision No. 06/QD-HDQT-DAB dated 26 January 2011, Mr Tran Phuong Binh, the General
Director, is authorized to sign the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS
The auditors of the Bank are Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.

4

DongA Bank

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
Management of Dong A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) presents its report and the consolidated
financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2011.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and its subsidiaries and of the consolidated
results of their operations and the consolidated cash flows for the year. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the management is required to:
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
 make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements; and
 prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Bank and its subsidiaries will continue in business.
Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries and
to ensure that the accounting records comply with the registered accounting system. It is also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Management has confirmed to comply with the above requirements in preparing the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT
Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2011 and of the consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and
Accounting System for Credit Institutions and comply with relevant regulations stipulated by the State
Bank of Vietnam.

On behalf of Management:

Mr Tran Phuong Binh
General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
26 March 2012
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Reference: 60752831/15100928

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To:

The Shareholders of
Dong A Commercial Joint Stock Bank

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dong A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the
Bank”) and its subsidiaries as set out on pages 5 to 73 which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2011, the consolidated income statement and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended and the notes thereto.
The preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Bank’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit.
Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatements. An audit includes testing on a sampling basis,
evidence supporting the figures and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles applied and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 and of the consolidated results of their
operations and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese
Accounting Standards and Accounting System for Credit Institutions and comply with relevant regulations
stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam.

.

Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited

Mai Viet Hung Tran 						
Deputy General Director
				
Certificate No. D.0048/KTV					
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
26 March 2012
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Hoang Thi Hong Minh
Auditor in charge
Certificate No. 0761/KTV

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2011

B02/TCTD
VND million

Notes

31 December
2011

31 December
2010

ASSETS
Cash, gold and precious stones

5

8,170,257

6,673,308

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam

6

1,479,377

1,354,420

Due from and loans to other credit institutions

7

4,213,593

3,349,120

4,213,593

3,234,755

Due from other credit institutions

-

115,229

10

-

(864)

8

554,643

1,305,870

566,811

1,323,363

(12,168)

(17,493)

Loans to other credit institutions
Provision for loans to other credit institutions
Trading securities
Trading securities
Provision for a decline in value of trading
securities

13.1

Derivatives and other financial assets
Loans and advances to customers

-

-

43,341,054

37,874,325

44,003,078

38,320,847

Loans and advances to customers

9

Provision for credit losses

10

(662,024)

(446,522)

11

2,572,672

1,827,535

2,572,672

1,839,910

-

-

-

(12,375)

537,650

603,198

Investments in joint-ventures

-

-

Investments in associates

-

-

573,262

614,144

(35,612)

(10,946)

Investment securities
Securities - available-for-sale
Securities - held-to-maturity
Provision for a decline in value of investment
securities
Long-term investments

13.2
12

Other long-term investments
Provision for impairment of long-term investments

13.3

Fixed assets

1,223,566

940,622

910,026

676,363

Cost

1,420,908

1,078,839

Accumulated depreciation

(510,882)

(402,476)

Financial lease

-

-

Cost

-

-

Accumulated depreciation

-

-

313,540

264,259

Tangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets

14.1

14.2

Cost

358,553

295,187

Accumulated amortization

(45,013)

(30,928)

-

-

-

-

Investment properties
Cost

-

-

15

3,455,766

1,944,686

Receivables

15.1

1,986,748

1,404,961

Interest and fee receivables

15.2

1,019,497

430,732

Accumulated depreciation
Other assets

Deferred tax asset
Other assets
In which: Goodwill
Provision for doubtful debts
TOTAL ASSETS

22
15.3

-

1,668

449,521

107,325

-

-

-

-

65,548,578

55,873,084
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
as at 31 December 2011

B02/TCTD
VND million

Notes

31 December
2011

31 December
2010

LIABILITIES
Borrowings from the Government and the State
Bank of Vietnam

16

839,958

700,000

Due to and borrowings from other credit
institutions

17

5,734,774

4,173,835

Due to other credit institutions

4,186,819

3,510,681

Borrowings from other credit institutions

1,547,955

663,154

36,064,013

31,417,279

-

-

Due to customers

18

Derivatives and other financial liabilities
Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks

19

609,131

310,288

Valuable papers issued

20

4,872,574

11,154,737

21

11,614,363

2,696,662

473,680

447,812

Other liabilities
Interest and fee payables
Deferred tax liability
Other payables
Provision for contingent liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments

21.1
22
21.2
10

TOTAL LIABILITIES

27,748

-

11,071,935

2,223,018

41,000

25,832

59,734,813

50,452,801

OWNERS’ EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Capital

4,500,583

4,500,583

4,500,000

4,500,000

Fund for capital expenditure

-

-

Shares premium

-

-

Treasury shares

-

-

Charter capital

23.1

Preference shares
Other capital
Reserve funds

23.1
23

Foreign currency translation reserve
Asset revaluation reserve
Retained earnings
TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY
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23.1

-

-

583

583

364,806

267,204

-

-

-

-

948,376

652,496

5,813,765

5,420,283

65,548,578

55,873,084

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
as at 31 December 2011

B02/TCTD

OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
VND million

31 December
2011

31 December
2010

5,098,217

3,090,648

531

-

Letters of credit

3,213,377

2,009,506

Other guarantees

1,884,309

1,081,142

Commitments

-

-

Commitments to customers

-

-

Notes
Contingent liabilities
Financial guarantees

Other commitments
37

-

-

5,098,217

3,090,648

Prepared by:

Approved by:

Approved by:

Ms Dang Boi Quynh
General Accountant

Ms Vo Thi Kim Anh
Chief Accountant

Mr Tran Phuong Binh
General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
26 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2011

B03/TCTD
VND million

Notes

2011

2010
(as restated)

Interest and similar income

25

7,348,942

4,508,605

Interest and similar expense

26

(4,881,882)

(3,134,577)

2,467,060

1,374,028

Net interest income
Fee and commission income

466,687

405,432

Fee and commission expenses

(84,433)

(66,062)

Net fee and commission income

27

382,254

339,370

Net (loss)/gain from foreign currencies and gold
trading

28

(27,850)

11,438

Net loss from dealing of trading securities

29

(27,881)

(17,003)

Net gain from dealing of investment securities

30

26,501

69,633

5,237

154,503

Other operating income
Other operating expenses
Net other operating income

31

Income from long-term investments

32

(2,400)

(4,656)

2,837

149,847

24,552

13,306

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

2,847,473

1,940,619

Personnel expenses

(629,943)

(353,344)

Depreciation and amortization charges

(124,214)

(124,549)

Other operating expenses
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

33

NET OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE
CREDIT LOSS EXPENSE

10

Credit loss expense
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

22

Current corporate income tax expense

22

Deferred corporate income tax benefit/(expense)
Total corporate income tax expense
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

24

(541,633)

(465,228)

(1,295,790)

(943,121)

1,551,683

997,498

(296,176)

(139,984)

1,255,507

857,514

(278,935)

(218,985)

(29,416)

20,799

(308,351)

(198,186)

947,156

659,328

2,105

1,932

Basic earnings per share (VND)

Prepared by:

Approved by:

Approved by:

Ms Dang Boi Quynh
General Accountant

Ms Vo Thi Kim Anh
Chief Accountant

Mr Tran Phuong Binh
General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
26 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

B04/TCTD
VND million

Notes

2011

2010

6,762,952

4,250,006

(4,856,014)

(3,024,069)

382,254

339,370

(157,922)

94,999

(1,414)

85,132

2,246

5,481

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest and similar income received
Interest and similar expense paid
Fees and commission income received
Net receipts from foreign currencies, gold and securities
trading
Other operating income
Recovery from bad debts written-off previously

31

Payments to employees and other operating expenses
Corporate income tax paid during the year

15.1, 22

Net operating cash flows before changes in net
operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Increase in due from and loans to other credit institutions
(Increase)/decrease in trading securities
(Increase)/decrease in derivatives and other financial assets
Increase in loans and advances to customers
Decrease in provision for writing-off of loans, securities and
long-term investments
Increase in other assets
Changes in operating liabilities
Increase in borrowings from the Government and
the State Bank of Vietnam
Increase/(decrease) in due to and borrowings from other
credit institutions
Increase in due to customers (including State Treasury)
(Decrease)/increase in valuable papers issued (except for
valuable papers included in financial activities)
Increase in grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks
Increase/(decrease) in derivatives and other financial
liabilities
Increase in other liabilities
Reserves utilized during the year
Net cash flows from operating activities

10

(1,054,723)

(806,040)

(325,528)

(140,596)

751,851

804,283

(7,500,639)

(8,570,753)

(764,771)

(1,889,477)

23,790

(2,375,568)

-

-

(5,682,231)

(3,965,303)

(66,370)

(11,499)

(1,011,057)

(328,906)

9,148,801

11,850,098

139,958

700,000

1,560,939

(593,904)

4,646,734

3,443,720

(6,282,163)

7,472,651

298,843

19,241

-

-

8,792,852

814,390

(8,362)

(6,000)

2,400,013

4,083,628

(156,663)

(120,558)

2,079

70,447

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Expenses of disposal of fixed assets

-

-

Purchase of investment property

-

-

Proceeds from disposal of investment property

-

-

Expenses of disposal of investment property

-

-

-

-

40,882

126,349

24,552

13,306

(89,150)

89,544

Payments for investments in joint ventures, associates and
other entities
Receipts from investments in joint ventures, associates and
other entities
Dividend receipts from long-term investments
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

B04/TCTD
VND million

Notes

2011

2010

Increase in charter capital

-

1,100,000

Proceeds from issuance of long-term convertible valuable
papers and other long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term convertible valuable papers and
other long-term borrowings

-

-

-

-

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(604,981)

(499,600)

Purchase of treasury shares

-

-

Proceeds from sale of treasury shares

-

-

Dividends paid to shareholders

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

(604,981)

600,400

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the
year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year

1,705,882

4,773,572

9,104,300

4,330,728

-

-

10,810,182

9,104,300

34

Net foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

34

Prepared by:

Approved by:

Approved by:

Ms Dang Boi Quynh
General Accountant

Ms Vo Thi Kim Anh
Chief Accountant

Mr Tran Phuong Binh
General Director

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
26 March 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011
1.

B05/TCTD

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Dong A Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) is a commercial joint stock bank incorporated and
registered in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.
Establishment and Operations
The Bank was established in Vietnam in accordance with Banking License No. 0009/NH-GP issued by
the State Bank of Vietnam (“the SBV”) on 27 March 1992 and Decision No. 135/QD-UB issued by the
People’s Committee of Ho Chi Minh City on 16 April 1995. The Bank’s operational duration is 99 years.
The Bank’s principal activities are to provide banking services throughout Vietnam including receiving
short, medium and long-term deposits from organizations and individuals; making short, medium and
long-term loans and advances to organizations and individuals based on the nature and capability
of the Bank’s sources of capital; also including foreign exchange transactions, international trade
financial services, discount of commercial papers, bonds and other valuable papers, and providing
other banking services allowed by the State Bank of Vietnam.
Charter capital
The Bank’s initial charter capital was VND 30 billion. The charter capital has increased overtime and
accounted to VND 4,500 billion as at 31 December 2011, which was fully contributed by shareholders.
According to Official Letter No. 9659/NHNN-TTGSNH issued by the State Bank of Vietnam dated 16
December 2011, the Bank was approved by the State Bank of Vietnam to increase its charter capital
to VND 5,000 billion in accordance with the plan approved by the 19th Annual General Meeting of
shareholders on 12 March 2011. As a result, shares will be issued to the existing shareholders and
the capital increase is expected to be paid up in the first quarter of the year 2012.
Head office and branch network
The Bank’s head office is located at 130 Phan Dang Luu Street, Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh
City, Vietnam. As at 31 December 2011, the Bank had one (1) head office, one (1) transaction centre,
two hundred and twenty six (226) branches, transaction offices, transaction units and saving funds.
Subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2011, the Bank had two (2) subsidiaries as below:
Principal
Establishment decisions
activities
Decision No. 12/GPHDKD issued by Securities trading
the State Securities Commission on
20 May 2003
Dong A Money Transfer Business License No. 4104000024
Money transfer
Company Limited
issued by the Department of Planning
and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City
on 20 August 2001
Subsidiaries
Dong A Securities
Company Limited

Ownership
100%
100%

In addition, Dong A Securities Company Limited also had one (1) subsidiary, which is Dong A Capital
Company Limited.

Subsidiaries
Dong A Capital
Company Limited

Principal
Establishment decisions
activities
Decision No. 20/UBCK-GP issued by Fund
the State Securities Commission on management
24 September 2007

Ownership
100%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011
1.

B05/TCTD

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
Employees
Total employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 were 4,846 persons (31
December 2010: 4,750 persons).

2.

FISCAL YEAR AND FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

2.1

Fiscal year
The Bank’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its financial statements starts on 1 January
and ends on 31 December.

2.2

Accounting currency
The Bank maintains its accounting records in Vietnam Dong (“VND”). The consolidated financial
statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries are presented in millions of Vietnam Dong (“VND
million”), that does not affect understanding of the users of the consolidated financial statements.

3.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

3.1

Compliance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and System for credit institutions
Management confirms that the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Accounting System for
Credit institutions operating in Vietnam.

3.2

Accounting standards and system
The consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries are prepared in accordance
with Accounting System for Credit Institutions required under Decision No. 479/2004/QD-NHNN
issued on 29 April 2004, amended and revised decisions on Decision No. 479/2004/QD-NHNN,
Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN issued on 18 April 2007 by the Governor of the State Bank of
Vietnam and Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by Ministry of Finance as per:
 Decision No. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and Promulgation of
Four Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 1);
 Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and Promulgation of
Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 2);
 Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and Promulgation of
Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 3);
 Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of Six
Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 4); and
 Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and Promulgation of
Four Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 5).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using accounting principles,
procedures and reporting practices generally accepted in Vietnam. Accordingly, the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated cash flow statement and the notes
thereto and their utilisation are not designed for those who are not informed about the Vietnam’s accounting
principles, procedures and practices and furthermore are not intended to present its consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows in accordance with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in countries other than Vietnam.
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as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

B05/TCTD

3.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

3.3

Consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries
as at and for the year ended 31 December each year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as the Bank using consistent accounting policies.
All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and unrealized profits resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
The financial statements of subsidiaries (as presented in Note 1) are fully consolidated from the
date when the control is transferred to the Bank. The control is achieved when the Bank has the
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating polices of an entity so as to obtain
economic benefits from its activities. The operating results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the date of acquisition or up
to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

3.4

Basis of judgments and estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities. These estimates and assumptions also affect the income and expenses and the resultant
provisions. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions involving varying degrees
of subjectivity and uncertainty and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes in such
provisions.

3.5

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The accounting policies adopted by the Bank in preparation of the financial statements are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Bank’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010 except for the change in the accounting policy in relation to Circular No. 210/2009/
TT-BTC providing guidance for the adoption in Vietnam of the International Financial Reporting
Standards on presentation and disclosures of financial instruments.
On 6 November 2009, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 210/2009/TT-BTC providing
guidance for the adoption in Vietnam of the International Financial Reporting Standards on
presentation and disclosures of financial instruments (“Circular 210”) which is effective for the
financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
The adoption of Circular 210 results in new disclosures being added to the financial statements as
shown in notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Because Circular 210 only provides guidance for the presentation and disclosures of financial
instruments, the concepts of financial assets, financial liabilities and other related concepts presented
in Note 40 are only applied for the disclosure of this note. The assets, liabilities and equity of the Bank
have been recognized and accounted for in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards
and Accounting System for Credit Institutions and comply with relevant regulations stipulated by the
State Bank of Vietnam.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

B05/TCTD

3.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM (continued)

3.6

Adjustments/restatements of opening balances and basis for adjustments
In 2011, the Bank has made reclassification of some figures in the 2010 consolidated financial
statements as follows:
Extracted from the consolidated income statement for the financial year ended 31 December
2010
VND million

2010 as

Reclassification

previously stated

/adjustment

Net gain from dealing of investment securities
Other operating expenses

2010
as restated

58,687

10,946

69,633

(454,282)

(10,946)

(465,228)

Effect on the consolidated income
statement

-

The Bank reclassified provision expense for decline in value of other long-term investments to
other operating expense in conforming to Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN.

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, gold, precious stones, current accounts with the SBV,
treasury notes and other short-term valuable papers which are eligible for discount with the SBV,
and balances and loans due from banks with an original maturity of less than three (3) months.

4.2

Receivables
Receivables other than receivables from banking activities of credit institutions are initially
recognized at cost and continuously presented at cost in subsequent periods.
Provision for doubtful debts is set up based on the aging schedule of overdue debts or expected
losses which may occur in case where a debt has not been due for payment but a corporate debtor
is bankrupted or liquidated; or individual debtor is missing, run away, being prosecuted, under a
trial or serving sentences or dead. Provision expense occurred is recognized into “Other operating
expenses” in the consolidated income statement for the period.
The Bank and its subsidiaries make provision for doubtful debts under the guidance of Circular
No. 228/2009/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance on 7 December 2009. Accordingly, the
provision rates applied for overdue receivables are as follows:
Overdue period

30%

From one (1) year to less than two (2) years

50%

From two (2) years to less than three (3) years

70%

From three (3) years and above
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

B05/TCTD

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers are presented at the outstanding principal balances at the end
of the financial year.

4.4

Provision for credit losses
Loans and advances to customers are classified and provided for allowance in accordance
with the Law on Credit Institutions No. 47/2010/QH12 effective from 1 January 2011; Decision
No. 1627/2001/QD-NHNN dated 31 December 2001 issued by the State Bank of Vietnam on
lending statutory; Decision No. 127/2005/QD-NHNN dated 3 February 2005 amending and
supplementing Decision No. 1627/2001/QD-NHNN; Decision No. 493/2005/QD-NHNN dated 22
April 2005 and Decision No. 18/2007/QD-NHNN dated 25 April 2007 by the State Bank of Vietnam
on loan classification and provision. Accordingly, loans are classified as Current, Special Mention,
Substandard, Doubtful and Loss on the basis of payment arrears status and other qualitative
factors.
Net loans and advances exposure for each borrower is calculated by subtracting from the loan
balance the discounted value of collateral. Decision No. 493/2005/QD-NHNN and Decision No.
18/2007/QD-NHNN stipulated specific discount rates for certain accepted collaterals.
Specific provision is created on the net loans and advances exposure of each borrower using fixed
provision rates as follows:
Group
1

Name

Specific provision rate

Current

2

Special Mention

3

Substandard

4

Doubtful

5

Loss

0%
5%
20%
50%
100%

Loans classified as Substandard, Doubtful and Loss are considered as bad debts.
In accordance with Decision No. 493/2005/QD-NHNN and Decision No. 18/2007/QD-NHNN,
a general provision is made for credit losses which are yet to be identified during the loan
classification and provision process and for the credit institutions’ potential financial difficulties due
to deterioration in loan quality. As such, the Bank is required to fully create and maintain a general
provision at 0.75% of total loans and advances to customers, guarantees, payment acceptances
and non-cancellable loan commitments with specific effective date which are classified in groups
1 to 4. The detail of loan classification and provision is disclosed at Note 10.
The provisions are recorded in the consolidated income statement as an expense and will be
used to write off any credit losses incurred. According to Decision No. 493/2005/QD-NHNN, the
Bank should establish the Bad Debt Resolution Committee which approves the writing-off of
loans classified in Group 5, or which corporate borrowers are bankrupted or liquidated, or which
individual borrowers are deceased or missing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

B05/TCTD

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5

Trading securities
Trading securities are debt, equity and other securities acquired by the Bank and its subsidiaries for
resale in the short-term period for benefits from price difference.
Trading securities are initially recorded at the cost on the transaction date and continuously presented
at cost in subsequent periods.
Interest earned in the period of holding trading securities is recognized in the consolidated financial
statements on a cash basis.
These securities are reviewed for determination of decline in their values at the financial statement
date. Trading securities are provided for provision for a decline in value when the carrying value is
higher than the market value according to Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC issued on 7 December
2009. In circumstances where securities’ market prices are not available, no provision is calculated.
Provisions for a decline in value of investments are recognized as “Net gain/(loss) from dealing of
trading securities” in the consolidated income statement.
Entrusted investment securities of investors are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently, these
securities are measured at cost; except for the case the Bank and its subsidiaries bear risks under
the agreements with investors, these securities are then measured at cost less provision for a
decline in value of securities in subsequent accounting periods.

4.6

Investment securities

4.6.1

Available-for-sale securities
Available-for-sale securities include debt and equity securities which are held by the Bank and its
subsidiaries for the purpose of investment and sale availability, and are not regularly purchased
and sold but can be sold any time when there is benefit and the Bank and its subsidiaries are not
the founder shareholder, strategic partner or have certain dominant in the process of establishing
and deciding financial and operating policies of the investees through a written agreement on
assignments of its representatives to the Board of Directors or Management.
Available-for-sale equity securities are initially recognized at cost at the purchase date and
continuously presented at cost in subsequent periods.
Available-for-sale debt securities are initially recognized at face value at the purchase date. The
accrued interest income (for debt securities with interest payment in arrears) and unearned interest
income (for debt securities with interest payment in advance) are recorded in a separate account.
Discount/premium which represents the difference between the cost and the amount being the face
value plus (+) accrued interest income (for debt securities with interest payment in arrears) or minus
(-) unearned interest income (for debt securities with interest payment in advance) is also recorded
in a separate account.
In subsequent periods, these securities are continuously recorded at face value, and the discount/
premium is amortized to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of securities. The interest received in arrears is recorded on the following principle:
the accrued interest amount prior to the purchase is credited to the value of such securities and the
corresponding accrued interest income account; and the accrued interest amount after the purchase
is recognized into the consolidated income statement under the cumulative method. The amount
of interest received in advance is amortized to the interest income from investment securities on a
straight-line basis over the remaining term of securities.
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B05/TCTD

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

Investment securities (continued)

4.6.1

Available-for-sale securities (continued)
Available-for-sale investments are reviewed to determine the possibility of decline in their value.
Provision for a decline in value of securities is made when carrying value is higher than market value
according to Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance dated 7 December
2009. In case that fair value or market prices of securities are not available or cannot be determined
reliably, no provision is calculated. Provision for a decline in value is recognized into the consolidated
income statement in “Net gain/(loss) from dealing of investment securities”.

4.6.2

Held-to-maturity securities
Held-to-maturity investments are debt securities which are bought by the Bank and its subsidiaries
with the purpose of earning interest and which the Bank and its subsidiaries have the intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity securities have the determinable value and the specific
maturity date. In case these securities are sold before maturity, they will be reclassified to trading
securities or available-for-sale securities.
These securities are initially recognized at face value at the purchase date. The accrued interest
income (for debt securities with interest payment in arrears) and unearned interest income (for
debt securities with interest payment in advance) incurred before the purchase date are recorded
in a separate account. Discount/premium which represents the difference between the cost and
the amount being the face value plus (+) accrued interest income (for debt securities with interest
payment in arrears) or minus (-) unearned interest income (for debt securities with interest payment
in advance) is also recorded in a separate account.
In subsequent periods, these securities are continuously recorded at face value, and the discount/
premium is amortized to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of securities. The interest received in arrears is recorded on the following principle:
the accrued interest amount prior to the purchase is credited to the value of such securities and the
corresponding accrued interest income account; and the accrued interest amount after the purchase
is recognized into the consolidated income statement under the cumulative method. The amount
of interest received in advance is amortized to the interest income from investment securities on a
straight-line basis over the remaining term of securities. Held-to-maturity investments are reviewed
to assess the possibility of decline in their value. Provision for a decline in value of securities is
made when carrying value is higher than market value according to Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC
issued by the Ministry of Finance dated 7 December 2009. In case that fair value or market prices
of securities are not available or cannot be determined reliably, no provision is calculated. Provision
for a decline in value is recognized into the consolidated income statement in “Net gain/(loss) from
dealing of investment securities”.

4.7

Other long-term investments
Other long-term investments represent capital contributions and investments in other entities which
the Bank and its subsidiaries hold less than 20% voting rights and are the founder shareholder, the
strategic partner, or have ability to make certain influence on preparing and making the financial and
operating policies of the investees through a written agreement on assignment of its representatives
to the Board of Directors or Management.
Other long-term investments are initially recognized at cost at the purchase date and continuously
presented at cost less provision for impairment of long-term investment (if any) in subsequent
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

B05/TCTD

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7

Other long-term investments (continued)
Provision for impairment of long-term investment is recognized in the consolidated income statement
when market values are lower than book values, or where there is other objective evidence of
prolonged impairment of other long-term investments.
Provision for impairment of long-term investment is made if the investees incur net loss (except
for the loss is incurred in line with the business plan before the investment) in accordance with
Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance on 7 December 2009. Provision
for impairment loss is computed by multiplying the excess of total actual capital contributions of all
parties in the investee over the owners’ equity of the investee by the percentage of investment capital
of the Bank and its subsidiaries in total actual capital contributions of all parties in the investee.

4.8

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date (“repos”) are not
derecognized from the consolidated financial statements. The corresponding cash received is
recognized as a liability in the consolidated balance sheet. The difference between the sale and
repurchase prices is allocated on a straight-line basis into the consolidated income statement over
the term of the agreement using the contractual interest rate.
Securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future date (“reverse repos”) are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The corresponding cash paid is recognized
as an asset in the consolidated balance sheet. The difference between the purchase and resale
prices is allocated on a straight-line basis to the consolidated income statement over the term of
the agreement using the contractual interest rate.

4.9

Tangible fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price plus any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.
Cost related to additions, improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to the consolidated income statement.
When assets are sold or liquidated, their cost and accumulated depreciation are deducted from
the consolidated balance sheet item and any gains or losses resulting from their disposal are
recorded to the consolidated income statement.

4.10

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
The cost of an intangible fixed asset comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of preparing the intangible fixed asset for its intended use.
Expenditures for additions, improvements are added to the carrying amount of the assets and
other expenditures are charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred.
When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, their costs and accumulated amortization are
removed from the consolidated balance sheet and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is
included in consolidated income statement.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.11

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization of tangible fixed assets and intangible assets is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Buildings and structures			
Machinery and equipment			
Vehicles					
Office equipment				
Accounting software and other applications

5 - 25 years
3 - 5 years
6 - 7 years
5 - 7 years
3 - 15 years

Land use rights with indefinite useful life are not amortized. Land use rights with definite useful life
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of land use rights.
4.12

Payables and accruals
Payable and accrual are recognized for amount to be paid in the future for goods and services
received, whether or not billed to the Bank and its subsidiaries.

4.13

Provision for off-balance-sheet commitments
According to Decision No. 493/2005/QD-NHNN and Decision No. 18/2007/QD-NHNN of the State
Bank of Vietnam, credit institutions must make a loan classification and provision for guarantees,
payment acceptances and non-cancellable loan commitments (generally called off-balance-sheet
commitments). Off-balance sheet commitments are classified into groups such as Current, Special
Mention, Substandard, Doubtful and Loss based on the overdue status and other qualitative
factors.
Specific provision and general provision for off-balance-sheet commitments are calculated
similarly to provision for credit losses as described in Note 4.4. Provision expense is recorded as
“Credit loss expense” in the consolidated income statement and provision balance is recorded as
other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

4.14

Income and expense recognition
Interest income and expense are recognized in the consolidated income statement on an accrual
basis. The recognition of accrued interest income is suspended when a loan is classified in groups
2 to 5 according to Decision No. 493/2005/QD-NHNN and Decision No. 18/2007/QD-NHNN.
Suspended interest income is recorded and monitored in the off-balance sheet and recognized in
the consolidated income statement upon actual receipt.
Income from securities brokerage services is recognized in the consolidated income statement
when the transaction has been processed.
Income from securities investment is determined by the difference between the selling price and
the average cost of securities sold. Cost of securities sold is calculated using the moving weighted
average method. Cost of long-term bond is calculated using the weighted average method.
Entrusted investment portfolio management fee is recognized on an accrual basis according to the
conditions and terms of contracts.
Service fees and commissions are recognized when incurred.
Cash dividends from equity investments are recognized in the consolidated income statement when
the Bank and its subsidiaries’ right to receive the payment is established. For stock dividends and
bonus shares, only the number of shares is updated in the accounting records without recognizing
dividend income in the consolidated income statement.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.15

Foreign currency transactions
The Bank and its subsidiaries maintain their accounting systems and record all transactions in
original currencies. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end
are translated into VND using exchange rates ruling at the consolidated balance sheet date (see
list of exchange rates of applicable foreign currencies against VND as at 31 December in Note 43).
Income and expenses arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted into VND at rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Unrealized foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities at the consolidated balance sheet date are recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

4.16

Corporate income tax
Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
to be paid to (or recovered from) the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws are applied and
enacted at the consolidated balance sheet date.
Current income tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it relates
to items recognized directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also dealt with in equity.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right for the
Bank to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the Bank intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
The tax returns of the Bank and its subsidiaries are subject to examination by the tax authorities.
Due to the ambiguity associated with the applicability of tax laws and regulations in Vietnam,
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could be changed at a later date upon
final determination by the tax authorities.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purpose at the
consolidated balance sheet date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
 Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.
 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures where timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused
tax credit and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credit and unused tax
losses can be utilized, except:
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Deferred tax (continue)
 Where the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.
 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates, and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will be sufficient for the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when it relates
to items recognized directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in the equity
account.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority and the Bank and its subsidiaries intend to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
4.17

Fiduciary assets
Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not reported in the consolidated financial statements since
they are not owned by the Bank and its subsidiaries.

4.18

Derivative contracts
With respect to foreign currency forward contracts, difference between VND value of sale or
purchase of foreign currency under forward rate and spot rate at the effective date of contract is
recognized as asset item - “Derivative and other financial assets” if it is positive or liability item
- “Derivative and other financial liabilities” if it is negative. This difference will be amortized on a
straight-line basis during the contract term. At the consolidated balance sheet date, foreign currency
forward commitments are re-valued using the official exchange rate ruling by the SBV. Gain or loss
from revaluation is recognized into “Net gain/(loss) from foreign currencies and gold trading” of the
consolidated income statement.

4.19

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and reported at the net amount in the consolidated
balance sheet if, and only if, the Bank and its subsidiaries have an enforceable legal right to offset
financial assets against financial liabilities and the Bank and its subsidiaries have intention to settle
on a net basis, or the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities is made simultaneously.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20

Employee benefits

4.20.1 Post employment benefits
Post employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries by the
Social Insurance Agency which belongs to the Ministry of Labour, Invalids and Social Affairs. The
Bank and its subsidiaries are required to make contributions to these post employment benefits
by paying social insurance premium to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 16.00% of an
employee’s basic salary on a monthly basis. The Bank and its subsidiaries have no further obligation
to fund the post employment benefits of its employees.
4.20.2 Voluntary resignation and retrenchment benefits
Voluntary resignation benefits: The Bank and its subsidiaries have the obligation, under Section 42
of the Vietnam Labour Code amended on 2 April 2002, to pay allowance arising from voluntarily
resignation of employees, equal to one-half month’s salary for each year of employment plus salary
allowances (if any) up to 31 December 2008. The average monthly salary used in this calculation will
be the average monthly salary of the six-month period up to the resignation date.
Retrenchment benefits: The Bank and its subsidiaries have the obligation, under Section 17 of
the Vietnam Labour Code, to pay allowance to employees who are retrenched as a result of
organizational restructure or technological changes. In such case, the Bank and its subsidiaries
shall pay to the employees an allowance for loss of work equivalent to the aggregate amount of
one month’s salary for each year of employment, but no less than two months’ salary. Allowance
increase or reverse is recorded in the consolidated income statement.
4.20.3 Unemployment insurance
According to Circular No. 04/2009/TT-BLDTBXH guiding Decree No. 127/2008/ND-CP on
unemployment insurance, from 1 January 2009, the Bank and its subsidiaries are obliged to pay
unemployment insurance at 1.00% of their salary fund used for payment of unemployment insurance
for insurance participants and deduct 1.00% of salary of each employee to simultaneously pay to the
Unemployment Insurance Fund.
4.21

Appropriation of net profit
Net profit after tax is available for appropriation to shareholders after approval by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting and after making appropriation to reserve funds in accordance with
the Bank’s charter and Vietnamese regulatory requirements. Dividend is computed from the retained
earnings and distributed according to the shareholders’ ownerships.

4.22

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Bank before any appropriation of statutory reserves and bonus and welfare fund
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

5.

CASH, GOLD AND PRECIOUS STONES
VND million

Cash on hand in VND
Cash on hand in foreign currencies
Monetary gold
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1,021,969
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BALANCES WITH THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

1,479,377

Demand deposits at the State Bank of Vietnam

1,354,420

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam (“SBV”) include settlement and compulsory deposits. In
accordance with the regulations of the SBV, the Bank is required to maintain certain cash reserves
with the SBV in the form of compulsory deposits at 3.00% and 1.00% of customer deposits in VND
(2010: 3.00% and 1.00%); 8.00% and 6.00% of customer deposits in foreign currencies (2010:
4.00% and 2.00%) with original maturities of less than 12 months and over 12 months respectively.
Accordingly, total required average compulsory deposit (in both VND and foreign currencies) in
December 2011 were VND 1,019,180 million and USD 14,312 thousand respectively.
In 2011, compulsory deposit in VND and current account in USD earns interest at 1.20% p.a and
0.00% p.a, respectively (2010:1.20% p.a and 0.00% p.a).
In 2011, the Bank complied with regulations of SBV about compulsory reserve.

7.

DUE FROM AND LOANS TO OTHER CREDIT INSTITUTIONS
VND million

8.

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Due from other credit institutions

4,213,593

3,234,755

Loans to other credit institutions

-

115,229

General provision for loans to other credit institutions

-

(864)

4,213,593

3,349,120

TRADING SECURITIES
Details of trading securities as at 31 December are as follows:
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Debt securities
Issued by other local credit institutions

-

1,604

Total debt securities

-

1,604

-

19,793

Issued by local economic entities

255,387

136,319

Total equity securities

255,387

156,112

Total debt and equity securities

255,387

157,716

Equity securities
Issued by other local credit institutions

Entrusted investment securities

311,424

1,165,647

TOTAL

566,811

1,323,363

Provisions for trading securities

(12,168)

(17,493)

554,643

1,305,870
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Listing status of trading securities which the Bank and its subsidiaries hold and bear risks are as
follows:
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

-

1,604

Listed

153,803

86,665

Unlisted

101,584

69,447

255,387

156,112

255,387

157,716

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

42,437,105

37,056,599

Overdraft loans

707,442

780,834

Loans from grants and entrusted funds

486,518

217,634

Loans for discounted commercial notes and
valuable papers

316,872

209,042

55,141

56,738

44,003,078

38,320,847

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Debt securities
Unlisted
Equity securities

9.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
VND million

Loans to local economic entities and
individuals

Credit cards

9.1

Analysis of loans by quality
VND million

Current
Special mention

9.2

39,959,744

36,504,384

3,301,322

1,203,689

Substandard

194,403

99,188

Doubtful

286,930

228,938

Loss

260,679

284,648

44,003,078

38,320,847

Analysis of loans by original terms
VND million

31 December 2011
Short-term loans

27,906,862

24,815,457

Medium-term loans

10,978,029

10,168,791

Long-term loans
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Analysis of loans by ownership type
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

VND million

%

VND million

%

Other joint stock companies

17,501,359

39,77

14,126,262

36.86

Other limited liability companies

12,254,918

27,85

9,967,537

26.01

1,198,764

2,72

981,830

2.56

Joint stock companies with over
50% of charter capital or voting
rights owned by the State; or
the State has rights to direct the
companies

612,555

1,39

649,699

1.70

Limited liability companies with
2 or more members owned over
50% of charter capital by the
State; or the State has rights to
direct the companies

307,032

0,70

212,688

0.55

103,503

0,24

91,853

0.24

Public Service Units, the Party
and other associations

94,025

0,21

-

-

Foreign-invested enterprises

78,310

0,18

63,232

0.17

One member limited liability
companies wholly owned by the
State

20,468

0,05

160,783

0.42

32,170,934

73,11

26,253,884

68.51

11,832,144

26,89

12,066,963

31.49

44,003,078

100,00

38,320,847

100.00

Loans to economic entities

Private enterprises

Cooperatives and united
cooperatives

Loans to individuals
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9.4
Analysis of loans by economic sectors
				
31 December 2011
%

Trading, repairing of motor vehicles,
motorcycles and other vehicles

13,165,439

29,92

13,679,428

35.70

Construction

VND million

%

10,293,477

23,39

7,424,484

19.37

Household services and products for
personal consumption

7,886,568

17,92

9,337,191

24.37

Processing industry

5,433,915

12,35

3,272,797

8.54

Agriculture, forestry and aquatic products

2,574,250

5,85

1,496,915

3.91

Other services activities

1,265,126

2,88

268,646

0.70

Real estate trading activities

998,380

2,27

643,563

1.68

Logistics

943,363

2,14

522,621

1.36

Administration activities and supporting
services

478,880

1,09

585,175

1.53

Financial, banking and insurance services

281,330

0,64

443,679

1.16

Hotels and restaurants

251,268

0,57

344,407

0.90

Education and training

165,367

0,38

114,218

0.30

State governance and national defense:
Communist Party, unions, social
obligations

73,246

0,17

75,957

0.20

Health care and social relief activities

51,849

0,12

23,212

0.06

Mining exploration

51,517

0,12

54,379

0.14

Electricity and gas supply and distribution

41,469

0,09

11,389

0.03

Water supply and waste treatment

19,046

0,04

976

0.00

Information and communication

10,572

0,02

625

0.00

Science and technology

9,460

0,02

10,998

0.03

Entertainment

8,356

0,02

10,176

0.02

200

0,00

11

0.00

44,003,078

100,00

38,320,847

100.00

International NGO

10.

31 December 2010

VND million

PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES
Details of provision for credit losses as at 31 December are as follows:
VND million

31 December 2011
Loans to other credit institutions
Loans to customers
Off-balance sheet commitments

31 December 2010

-

864

662,024

446,522

41,000

25,832

703,024

473,218

The Bank has classified its loans and advances to customers in accordance with Decision No.
493/2005/QD-NHNN and Decision No. 18/2007/QD-NHNN issued by the State Bank of Vietnam and
its policy on loan classification and loan loss provisions. The provision for credit losses was made
based on the classification of outstanding loan balances and guarantees in the off balance sheet
as at 31 December 2011, instead of at 30 November 2011, as required by Decision No. 493/2005/
QD-NHNN because the Bank believes that the classification of outstanding loans as at 31 December
2011 represents more precisely the credit result of the Bank at the year end.
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Movements in provision for credit losses in current year are as follows:
VND million

Specific
provision

General
provision

Total

160,373

312,845

473,218

Provision charged during the year

251,702

56,223

307,925

Reversal of provision during the year

(11,749)

-

(11,749)

Provisions utilized to write off bad loans

(66,370)

-

(66,370)

Ending balance

333,956

369,068

703,024

Specific
provision

General
provision

Total

125,127

219,606

344,733

75,295

93,244

168,539

Beginning balance

Movements in provision for credit losses in previous year are as follows:

Beginning balance
Provision charged during the year
Reversal of provision during the year

(28,555)

-

(28,555)

Provisions utilized to write off bad loans

(11,494)

(5)

(11,499)

Ending balance

160,373

312,845

473,218

The breakdown of loan classification and provision as required by Decision No. 493/2005/QDNHNN, Decision No. 18/2007/QD-NHNN and its own policy as at 31 December 2011 are as follows:
			

VND million

Balance

Specific
provision

General
provision

Total
provision

39,959,744

-

299,698

299,698

Loans and advances to customers
Current

3,301,322

112,252

24,760

137,012

Substandard

Special mention

194,403

51,674

1,458

53,132

Doubtful

286,930

76,070

2,152

78,222

Loss

260,679

93,960

-

93,960

44,003,078

333,956

328,068

662,024

Off-balance sheet commitments
Current

5,466,719

-

41,000

41,000

TOTAL

49,469,797

333,956

369,068

703,024
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INVESTMENT SECURITIES
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Available-for-sale securities
Debt securities
Government bonds

1,116,114

302,121

Issued by other local credit institutions

1,000,000

1,000,000

50,000

50,000

2,166,114

1,352,121

Issued by local economic entities
Total debt securities
Equity securities

8,676

111,156

Issued by local economic entities

397,882

376,633

Total equity securities

406,558

487,789

Issued by other local credit institutions

Total debt and equity securities

2,572,672

1,839,910

Held-to-maturity securities

-

-

Provisions for investment securities

-

(12,375)

2,572,672

1,827,535

TOTAL

11.1

Details of available-for-sale debt securities
VND million

31 December 2011
Face Value

Face Value

Carrying
Value

1,114,615

1,116,114

300,000

302,121

Promissory notes issued by Vietnam
Export Import Commercial Joint Stock
Bank

800,000

800,000

800,000

800,000

Bonds issued by Vietnam Bank for Social
Policies

200,000

200,000

200,000

200,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

2,164,615

2,166,114

1,350,000

1,352,121

Government bonds

Bonds issued by Coal and Mining
Corporation of Vietnam
TOTAL

11.2

31 December 2010

Carrying
Value

The listing status of available-for-sale securities
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

1,316,114

502,121

850,000

850,000

2,166,114

1,352,121

406,558

487,789

2,572,672

1,839,910

Debt securities
Listed
Unlisted

Equity securities
Unlisted
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OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Other long-term investments

573,262

614,144

Provisions for decline in long-term investments

(35,612)

(10,946)

537,650

603,198

Details of the capital contributions and long-term investments in economic entities as at 31 December are
as follows:
31 December 2011

Saigon M&C Real Estate JSC
Asia Commerce Fisheries Corporation
Kinh Do Land Corporation
Special Aquatic Products JSC
Hung Thinh Phat Metallurgy JSC
Khai Toan JSC
Dong A Real Estate JSC
Vina Investment JSC
Nha Be Water Supply JSC
Song Hau Food Processing JSC
Ben Thanh Water Supply JSC
Vietnam Self-adhesive Materials JSC
Gia Dinh Water Supply JSC
Viet Hung JSC
Saigon Building Investment, Construction
and Trading JSC
Phu Hoa Tan Water Supply JSC
Global Insurance JSC
Vina Printing and Trading JSC
Thuan Phat Mobile Technology JSC
Credit Information Investment JSC – PCB
PETEC Logistics JSC
Viet Tien- Dong A JSC
Vina Smart Card JSC
Cho Lon Water Supply JSC
Saigon Plastic JSC
Vietnam National Financial Switching JSC
Century Synthetic Fiber Corporation
PETEC Lam Dong Coffee JSC
Center for Research and Application of
Economic Sciences (Cesais)
Bank Training and Consultancy JSC (BTC)
Guarantee Fund for small and medium
enterprises
30/4 Garment and Leather Products JSC
Investments in other companies

Face
Value
VND
Million
31,383
20,226
40,000
11,200
12,857
9,376
33,000
9,000
10,900
6,000
9,360
16,000
9,500
3,000
3,300

31 December 2010

Cost
VND
Million
94,147
63,703
46,000
42,448
39,071
38,972
33,000
27,343
24,525
22,500
19,188
16,000
13,680
12,000
10,597

Owned
by the
Bank
%
3.00
5.50
4.00
10.37
4.29
7.68
11.00
6.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
11.00

Face
Value
VND
Million
31,383
9,952
40,000
3,900
10,787
6,017
33,000
6,662
10,900
6,000
9,360
16,000
9,500
3,000
3,034

Cost
VND
Million
94,148
29,841
46,000
15,600
32,861
24,860
33,000
20,085
24,525
21,032
19,188
16,000
13,680
12,000
9,255

Owned
by the
Bank
%
6.00
2.70
4.00
3.61
3.60
4.93
11.00
4.44
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.00
10.11

9,000
8,800
3,240
8,000
7,962
5,400
5,000
3,300
2,767
1,358
2,500

9,450
8,800
8,603
8,000
7,962
5,400
5,000
3,300
2,988
2,917
2,500

10.00
11.00
10.13
10.00
9.84
5.40
10.00
11.00
2.13
0.81
1.98

9,000
8,800
2,873
8,000
3,182
5,400
5,000
3,300
2,767
2,358
2,500

9,450
8,800
7,636
8,000
3,182
5,400
5,000
3,300
2,988
4,547
2,500

10.00
11.00
10.64
10.00
6.36
5.40
10.00
11.00
2.13
3.28
2.65

746

1,785

0.33

2,189

6,683

1.96

1,460
750

1,480
750

4.87
8.41

1,460
750

1,480
750

4.87

503

503

5.15

371

371

5.15

500

500

0.26

500

500

150
-

150
573,262

1.79

150
38,030

150
131,332
614,144

Financial Statement 2011

8.41

0.26
1.79

31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011
13.

B05/TCTD

PROVISION FOR A DECLINE IN VALUE OF SECURITIES AND LONG-TERM
INVESTMENTS
Details of provision for a decline in value of securities and long-term investments during this year
are as follows:
VND million

2011

2010

Trading securities

17,493

41,774

Available-for-sale investment securities

12,375

-

Other long-term investments

10,946

29,383

40,814

71,157

(5,325)

(24,281)

(12,375)

12,375

24,666

(18,437)

6,966

(30,343)

12,168

17,493

-

12,375

35,612

10,946

47,780

40,814

Beginning balance
In which:

Increase/(decrease) during the year
In which:
Trading securities
Available-for-sale investment securities
Other long-term investments
Ending balance
In which:
Trading securities
Available-for-sale investment securities
Other long-term investments

13.1

Provision for a decline in value of trading securities
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Cost (Note 8)

Provision

Provision

Listed shares

153,802

5,432

10,329

Unlisted shares

101,585

6,736

7,164

255,387

12,168

17,493

311,424

-

-

566,811

12,168

17,493

Trading securities

Entrusted investment securities (*)

(*) This represents the investments entrusted by the investors to Dong A Capital Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Bank. Under the contractual agreements, the Bank and its subsidiaries do not bear any
risks arising from the decline in value of the investments. Accordingly, provision for a decline in value of
these investments has not been assessed and provided for.
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Provision for a decline in value of available-for-sale investment securities
VND million

31 December 2011
Cost (Note 11)

31 December 2010

Provision

Provision

Debt securities
Listed
Unlisted

1,316,114

-

-

850,000

-

-

2,166,114

-

-

406,558

-

12,375

2,572,672

-

12,375

Equity securities
Unlisted

13.3

Provision for impairment of long-term investments
VND million

31 December
2010

31 December 2011
Cost (Note 12)

Provision

Provision

Other long-term investments
Listed shares
Unlisted shares

2,988

747

-

570,274

34,865

10,946

573,262

35,612

10,946
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14.

FIXED ASSETS

14.1

Tangible fixed assets

B05/TCTD

Movements of tangible fixed assets in the current year are as follows:
VND million

Buildings &
structures

Machinery
& equipments

Beginning balance

423,601

465,790

68,644

81,731

Additions

Office
Vehicles equipments

Others

Total

Cost
39,073 1,078,839

221,999

92,412

6,443

23,226

5,357

349,437

Other increase

-

-

-

2,335

-

2,335

Disposals

-

(692)

(227)

(743)

(293)

(1,955)

Other decrease

(2,761)

(4,879)

(35)

-

(73)

(7,748)

Ending balance

642,839

552,631

74,825

106,549

44,064 1,420,908

Accumulated depreciation
Beginning balance

52,135

258,524

33,792

40,108

17,917

402,476

Depreciation
charge for the year

15,542

65,022

9,487

12,515

7,379

109,945

Other increases

-

2,335

-

-

46

2,381

Disposals

-

(625)

(227)

(743)

(286)

(1,881)

Other decreases

(1,554)

-

(20)

(465)

-

(2,039)

Ending balance

66,123

325,256

43,032

51,415

25,056

510,882

Net book value
Beginning balance

371,466

207,266

34,852

41,623

21,156

676,363

Ending balance

576,716

227,375

31,793

55,134

19,008

910,026

Other information on tangible fixed assets at 31 December 2011:
VND million

Net book value of tangible fixed assets which are temporarily idle
Cost of tangible fixed assets fully depreciated but still in use
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FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUE)

14.2

Intangible assets

B05/TCTD

Movements of intangible fixed assets in the year are as follows:
VND million

Land

Accounting
software and

use rights

other applications

Total

198,501

96,686

295,187

43,145

21,143

64,288

-

(922)

(922)

241,646

116,907

358,553

Beginning balance

128

30,800

30,928

Amortization charge for
the year

489

13,780

14,269

-

(184)

(184)

617

44,396

45,013

Beginning balance

198,373

65,886

264,259

Ending balance

241,029

72,511

313,540

Cost
Beginning balance
Additions
Other decrease
Ending balance
Accumulated
amortization

Other decrease
Ending balance
Net book value

Other information on intangible fixed assets at 31 December 2011:
VND million

15.

Net book value of intangible fixed assets which are temporarily idle

46,071

Cost of intangible fixed assets fully amortized but still in use

10,112

OTHER ASSETS
VND million

Note

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Receivables

15.1

1,986,748

1,404,961

Interest and fee receivables

15.2

1,019,497

430,732

-

1,668

449,521

107,325

3,455,766

1,944,686

Deferred tax assets
Other assets

22
15.3
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Receivables
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

29,852

57,448

1,956,896

1,347,513

1,986,748

1,404,961

Construction in progress
Other receivables

15.2

Interest and fee receivables
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

818,134

334,847

102,184

53,964

45

269

99,134

41,652

1,019,497

430,732

Interest receivable from loans to customers
Interest receivable from deposits at credit
institutions
Interest receivable from loans to credit
institutions
Interest receivable from investment debt
securities

15.3

Other assets
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

386,176

31,805

53,932

67,966

Foreclosed assets
Prepaid and deferred expenses
Others

16.

9,413

7,554

449,521

107,325

BORROWINGS FROM THE GOVERNMENT AND THE STATE BANK OF VIETNAM
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

839,958

-

-

700,000

839,958

700,000

Borrowings from the State Bank
Borrowings under the form of discounting
valuable paper (*)
Borrowings under the form of refinancing capital
credit contracts

17.

DUE TO AND BORROWINGS FROM OTHER BANKS
VND million
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31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Deposits from other banks

4,186,819

3,510,681

Borrowings from other banks

1,547,955

663,154

5,734,774

4,173,835
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DUE TO CUSTOMERS

18.1

Analysis by products
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VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

5,303,347

5,360,721

Demand deposits
Demand deposits in VND
Demand saving deposits in VND
Demand deposits in foreign currencies
Demand saving deposits in foreign currencies

17,664

33,751

284,864

268,926

8,816

20,237

Term deposits
Term deposits in VND
Term saving deposits in VND
Term deposits in foreign currencies
Term saving deposits in foreign currencies

2,013,884

1,272,864

24,748,079

20,344,659

43,430

46,448

3,235,290

3,671,417

99,962

125,906

268,540

227,776

Margin deposits
Margin deposits in VND
Margin deposits in foreign currencies
Deposits for specific purposes

18.2

40,137

44,574

36,064,013

31,417,279

Analysis by type of customer and ownership
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

State-owned enterprises

1,239,516

1,066,682

Private enterprises and others

2,964,481

2,615,274

342,007

258,379

Deposits by economic entities

Foreign-invested enterprises
Deposits by individuals
Deposits by others

19.

4,546,004

3,940,335

31,502,761

27,463,253

15,248

13,691

36,064,013

31,417,279

GRANTS, ENTRUSTED FUNDS AND LOANS EXPOSED TO RISKS
VND million

Grants and entrusted funds from Bank for
Investment and Development of Vietnam
Grants and entrusted funds from Japan Bank for
International Cooperation
Grants and entrusted funds from Asian Development
Bank

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

431,338

184,384

172,795

122,352

4,998

3,552

609,131

310,288
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VALUABLE PAPERS ISSUED
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

2,678,151

6,449,223

181,751

555,849

Certificates of gold deposit
Term under 12 months
Term from 12 months to 5 years
Term over 5 years

1,852

1,691

2,861,754

7,006,763

1,960,820

4,097,974

50,000

50,000

4,872,574

11,154,737

Promissory notes
Term under 12 months
Bond
Term from 12 months to 5 years

21.

OTHER LIABILITIES
VND million

Interest and fee payables
Deferred tax liabilities
Other payables
Provisions for contingent liabilities and
off-balance sheet commitments

21.1

Note

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

21.1

473,680

447,812

22

27,748

-

11,071,935

2,223,018

41,000

25,832

11,614,363

2,696,662

21.2
10

Interest and fee payables
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Interest payable on deposits in VND

70,914

45,531

Interest payable on deposits in foreign currencies

11,339

2,886

264,079

264,311

Interest payable on savings deposits in foreign
currencies

10,875

25,521

Interest payable on valuable papers in VND

71,921

91,950

Interest payable on valuable papers in gold

1,972

9,352

21,717

1,225

997

4,314

18,845

516

1,021

2,206

473,680

447,812

Interest payable on savings deposits in VND

Interest payable on loans in VND
Interest payable on loans in foreign currencies
Interest payables on gold kept on behalf of
customer
Other fee payables
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Other payables
VND million

Note

31 December 2011
146,405

40,411

10,925,530

2,182,607

Internal payables
External payables

22.

31 December 2010

OBLIGATIONS TO THE STATE BUDGET
VND million

Beginning
balance
Value added tax (“VAT”)

Amount incurred
during the year
Payable
Paid

Ending
balance

10,512

30,730

(33,652)

7,590

VAT on services

11,513

24,558

(32,446)

3,625

VAT on foreign exchange

(1,001)

6,172

(1,206)

3,965

103,308

278,935

(326,954)

55,289

8,237

44,242

(39,020)

13,459

122,057

353,907

(399,626)

76,338

Corporate income tax
Other taxes

The Bank and its subsidiaries’ tax returns are subject to examination by the tax authorities.
Because the application of tax laws and regulations to many types of transactions is susceptible
to varying interpretations, amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could be
changed at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.
Corporate income tax
The Bank and its subsidiaries have obligations to pay Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) at the rate of
25% of taxable profits, except for Dong A Securities Company Limited which has CIT rate of 20%
of taxable profits.
The consolidated CIT expense comprises of the CIT expense of the Bank and its subsidiaries. The
Bank and its subsidiaries are responsible for preparing and filing their separate CIT returns to the
local tax authorities.
The CIT expense of the Bank and its subsidiaries for the year was as follows:
VND million

31 December 2011
Current CIT expense
Deferred CIT expense/(income)

31 December 2010

278,935

218,985

29,416

(20,799)

308,351

198,186
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Current Corporate Income Tax
Current corporate income tax payable is determined based on the taxable income of the current
year. Taxable income is different from the one reported in the consolidated income statement since
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years due to the
differences between the Bank’s accounting policies and the current tax policies, and also excludes
non-taxable and non-deductible items for tax purpose. The current corporate income tax payables
of the Bank and its subsidiaries are calculated based on the statutory tax rates applicable at the
year-end.
Current corporate income tax expense for the year was calculated as follows:
VND million

Profit before tax
Tax exempt dividend income
Income from Government bonds
Unrealized foreign exchange (gains)/losses
Unrealized foreign exchange gain/(losses) in previous years
which were realized in the current year
Income from transferring Nha Be land use right (*)

2011

2010

1,255,507

857,514

(24,552)

(13,306)

-

(37)

(110,992)

72,220

(72,220)

38,703

65,547

(65,547)

325

197

1,113,615

889,744

-

(6,292)

1,113,615

883,452

272,501

211,716

CIT expense of subsidiaries, at 25%

6,402

5,431

CIT expense of subsidiaries, at 20%

-

2,973

32

(1,135)

Total estimated CIT expense for the year

278,935

218,985

CIT payable at beginning of year

103,308

23,548

Other non-deductible expenses
Estimated taxable income before tax losses
Subsidiaries’ tax losses carried forward
Estimated taxable income
CIT expense of the Bank, at 25%

Adjustments for CIT expense for the previous year

Adjustments for CIT for the previous year
Tax advance in prior year
CIT paid during the year
CIT payable at end of year

(55)

-

(1,371)

-

(325,528)

(139,225)

55,289

103,308

(*) This is the income from transferring Nha Be land use right incurred in 2010. The Bank made an advance for
CIT by 2% of the transferred value as the corresponding expense could not be determined in accordance
with Circular No. 130/2008/TT-BTC. In 2011, the Bank finalized the CIT payable on this income from real
estate transfer and recorded total CIT obligation into CIT expense for the current year.

40

DongA Bank

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011

B05/TCTD

Deferred Corporate Income Tax
Deferred income tax incurred during the year pertains mainly to origination or reversal of unrealized foreign exchange gains/losses resulting from the translation of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies into VND at the year-end and gain from transfer of land use rights due
to the Bank has not yet determined cost of land use rights transferred for CIT calculation purposes
in the previous year.
Deferred CIT is presented by the Bank as follows:
VND million

Consolidated
balance sheet
31 December 31 December
2011
2010

Credited/(debited) to the
consolidated
income statement
2011

2010

Deferred tax asset
Unrealized foreign exchange losses
arise
Gain from transfer of land use
rights

-

18,055

(18,055)

18,055

-

(16,387)

16,387

(16,387)

-

1,668

(27,748)

-

(27,748)

19,131

(27,748)

(29,416)

20,799

Deferred tax liability
Unrealized foreign exchange
gains (arise)

Net deferred income tax
(expense)/income
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Appropriation to reserves by the Bank
and a subsidiary for previous year
Temporary appropriation to reserves by
subsidiaries for current year
Appropriation to welfare and bonus fund
by the Bank and a subsidiary for previous
year
Temporary appropriation to welfare and
bonus fund by subsidiaries for current
year

-

Other increases/(decrease)

Reserves utilized during the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

277

32,213

-

64,005

-

4,500,000

(129)

-

-

-

-

594

62,730

-

197,908

-

-

-

-

-

563

763

-

4,778

(8,233)

(200)

-

-

-

2,124

6,900

-

513

Other
reserves

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

583

Other
capital

-

2,903

(481,500)

(562)

(68,053)

(1,458)

(102,606)

947,156

652,496

Retained
earnings

(8,362)

2,703

(481,500)

(562)

(68,053)

2,100

-

947,156

5,420,283

Total

VND million

B05/TCTD

The Bank also advanced interim dividends for the current year 2011 in cash amounting to VND 585,000 million (2010: VND 408,000 million) (Note 15.1).

Ending balance
4,500,000
96,495
261,103
6,104
1,104
583
948,376
5,813,765
			
The Bank paid the dividends in cash amounting to VND 481,500 million for the financial year 2010 in accordance with the resolution of the shareholders at the Bank’s
Annual General Meeting held on 12 March 2011.

Dividends paid for previous year

-

-

-

-

Net profit for the year

-

Opening balance

Business
& development fund

Statement of changes in owners’ equity

23.1

Capital supCharter plementary Financial recapital
fund
serve fund

OWNERS’ EQUITY AND RESERVES

23.
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Details of shares issued by the Bank are as follows:
31 December 2011
Shares

31 December 2010
Shares

Authorized shares

450,000,000

450,000,000

Issued and paid-up shares

450,000,000

450,000,000

Ordinary shares

450,000,000

450,000,000

Outstanding shares

450,000,000

450,000,000

Ordinary shares

450,000,000

450,000,000

10,000

10,000

Par value (VND/share)

23.2

Reserves of the Bank
The Bank creates its statutory reserves based on percentage of net profit after tax in accordance
with Law on Credit Institutions No. 47/2010/QH12 effective since 1 January 2011 as follows:

Capital supplementary reserve

Amount

Maximum balance

5% of net profit after tax

Charter capital

The following reserves are created based on percentage of net profit after tax and after deduction
of supplementary capital reserve (remaining profit after tax) in accordance with resolution of the
Board of Directors approved by the Annual General Meeting.
Amount

Maximum balance

Financial reserve

Based on resolution of the Board of Directors Not defined

Business and development
fund
Welfare and bonus fund

Based on resolution of the Board of Directors Not defined

Other funds

Based on resolution of the Board of Directors Not defined

Based on resolution of the Board of Directors Not defined

The Bank has not yet made statutory reserves from net profit after tax for 2011. Such reserves
will be made in 2012 after obtaining the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of shareholders.
23.3

Reserves of subsidiaries
Dong A Securities Company Limited
In accordance with Decision No. 27/2007/QD-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance on 24 April
2007, securities companies are required to create statutory reserves based on the percentage of
net profit after tax as follows:
Amount

Maximum balance

Capital supplementary reserve

5% of net profit after tax

100% of charter capital

Financial reserve

5% of net profit after tax

10% of charter capital
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OWNERS’ EQUITY AND RESERVES (continued)

23.3

Reserves of subsidiaries (continued)
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Other reserves are created based on this subsidiary’s charter as follows:

Business and development
fund

Amount

Maximum balance

10% of net profit after tax

Not defined

Internal training fund

5% of net profit after tax

Not defined

Bonus fund

5% of net profit after tax

Not defined

Welfare fund

5% of net profit after tax

Not defined

Dong A Capital Company Limited
Reserves are created based on this subsidiary’s charter as follows:
% of net profit after tax
Capital supplementary reserve

10%

Financial reserve

10%

Business and development fund

10%

Internal training fund

5%

Bonus fund

5%

Welfare fund

5%

Dong A Money Transfer Company Limited
Reserves are created based on this subsidiary’s charter as follows:
% of net profit after tax

24.

Financial reserve

10%

Business and development fund

5%

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share of the Bank are calculated as follows:

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Bank (VND million)
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary
shares during the year (shares)
Basic earnings per share (VND/share)
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2010

947,156

659,328

450,000,000

341,205,479

2,105
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INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME
VND million

2011

2010

6,633,742

4,289,110

Interest income on deposits

473,854

165,136

Interest income on debt securities investments

222,188

43,200

19,158

11,159

7,348,942

4,508,605

Interest income on loans

Other income from credit activities

26.

INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSES
VND million

2010

4,239,977

2,757,893

Interest expense on valuable papers

412,356

332,007

Interest expense on borrowings

229,124

44,361

Interest expense on customer deposits

Other expenses from credit activities

27.

2011

425

316

4,881,882

3,134,577

NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
VND million

2011

2010

Fees and commission income
288,730

221,116

Money transfer services

55,712

47,576

Brokerage services

36,589

49,203

Guarantee transactions
Underwriting and agency of securities issuance
services
Entrusted investments and agencies

30,831

32,532

16,116

12,869

8,942

8,936

Investment securities and financial advisory services

3,347

6,112

Treasury services

2,339

903

455

28

Settlement services

Asset maintenance

23,626

26,157

466,687

405,432

Post office and internet expenses

(23,354)

(19,608)

Settlement services

(23,056)

(17,821)

Expenses of Card center

Other income
Fees and commission expenses

(18,104)

(10,375)

Brokerage services

(7,162)

(10,152)

Advisory services

(4,776)

(1,695)

Treasury services

(4,287)

(2,416)

Other expenses

(3,694)

(3,995)

(84,433)

(66,062)

382,254

339,370

Net fees and commission income
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NET GAIN/(LOSS) FROM FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND GOLD TRADING
VND million

2011

2010

Income from foreign currencies and gold trading
Income from spot foreign exchange

212,410

56,671

Income from gold trading

155,550

183,333

565

1,486

368,525

241,490

Expense from spot foreign exchange

(137,874)

(194,632)

Expense from gold trading

(258,501)

(11,811)

-

(23,609)

(396,375)

(230,052)

(27,850)

11,438

Income from currency derivative financial instruments
Expense from foreign currencies and gold trading

Expense from currency derivative financial instruments
Net gain/(loss) from foreign currencies and gold
trading

29.

NET LOSS FROM DEALING OF TRADING SECURITIES
VND million

2011
Income from trading securities
Expenses from trading securities
Reversal of provision for a decline in value of trading
securities

2010

26,403

78,018

(59,609)

(119,302)

5,325

24,281

(27,881)

(17,003)

		

30.

NET GAIN FROM DEALING OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES
VND million

Income from trading available-for-sale investment securities
Reversal of provision for a decline in value of availablefor-sale investment securities

31.

2011
14,126

2010
(as restated)
52,625

12,375

17,008

26,501

69,633

NET OTHER OPERATING INCOME
VND million

2011
Recovery of bad loans previously written off

2,246

5,481

Income from transfer of land use rights

2,010

72,123

Income from transfer of right to purchase shares

-

53,350

Income from transfer of right to purchase building floor area

-

19,892

Income from other operating activities
Other operating expenses
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981

3,657

5,237

154,503

(2,400)

(4,656)

2,837

149,847
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INCOME FROM LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
VND million

2011

2010

- Trading equity securities

6,395

8,095

- Investment equity securities

8,241

-

Dividends in cash received during the year from long-term
investments:

- Other long-term investments

33.

9,916

5,211

24,552

13,306

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
VND million

2011

2010
(as restated)

8,918

7,669

Salaries and allowances

568,646

332,012

Termination allowances

36,839

990

Salary related allowance

24,436

20,341

22

1

629,943

353,344

Other tax expenses and fees
Expenses for employees

Social activities
Asset expenses

124,214

124,549

Office rental expense

99,917

89,833

Maintaining and preparing assets

88,481

52,321

Expenses for tools and equipments

18,493

21,577

Depreciation for fixed assets

2,913

2,540

334,018

290,820

Advertising, marketing, promotion and entertainment
expense

34,135

61,656

Electricity and water expense

30,844

29,862

Material and printing

27,257

28,913

Communication expenses

22,741

19,200

Business trip

18,066

15,852

Meeting and conference expenses

13,863

9,218

Asset insurance expenses
Other operating expenses

Training expenses
Other expenses

2,296

294

105,457

80,724

254,659

245,719

Insurance expense for customer deposits

43,586

34,623

Provision expense for decline in value of other longterm investments

24,666

10,946

1,295,790

943,121
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents represented in the consolidated cash flow statement comprise of the
following amounts in the consolidated balance sheet:
VND million

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

Cash, gold and precious stones

8,170,257

6,673,308

Demand deposits at the State Bank of Vietnam

1,479,377

1,354,420

Demand deposits at other credit institutions

1,136,646

722,132

96,947

412,623

(73,045)

(58,183)

10,810,182

9,104,300

Term deposits at and loans to other credit
institutions with term of less than three (3) months
Less: Deposit of investors for securities trading
(Note 21.2)

35.

EMPLOYEES’ INCOME
2011

2010

4,846

4,750

465,029

307,551

2. Lunch allowance (VND million)

24,192

17,694

3. Bonus (VND million)

97,229

36,117

I. TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (person)
II. EMPLOYEES’ INCOME
1. Total salary fund paid (VND million)

586,450

361,362

5. Average monthly salary (VND/employee)

7,996,784

5,395,632

6. Average monthly income (VND/employee)

10,084,778

6,339,684

4. Total income (1+2+3) (VND million)

36.

TYPE AND VALUE OF COLLATERAL ASSETS
VND million

Real estates

31 December 2010

37,772,111

32,672,602

Inventories

7,738,404

7,298,788

Valuable papers

5,518,860

4,090,168

Machinery and equipments

1,950,045

1,148,168

Transportation vehicles

1,793,101

1,705,808

Saving books
Others
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744,762

1,001,823

3,573,994

3,765,035

59,091,277

51,682,392
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
In the normal course of business, the Bank is a party to financial instruments that are recorded in
the consolidated off-balance sheet. These financial instruments mainly comprise financial guarantees and commercial letters of credit (“L/C”). These instruments involve elements of credit risk in
excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet.
Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as the possibility of sustaining a
loss because any other party to a financial instrument fails to perform in accordance with the terms
of the contract.
Financial guarantees are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party including guarantee for borrowings, settlement, and performing contracts and bidding. The credit risk involved in issuing guarantees is essentially the same
as that involved in extending facilities to other customers.
Commercial at sight letters of credit represent financing transactions by the Bank to its customer
where the customer is usually the buyer/importer of goods and the beneficiary is typically the
seller/exporter. Credit risk is limited as the merchandise shipped serves as collateral for the transaction.
Deferred payment letters of credit represent the amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn
upon and the client defaults in repayment to the beneficiary. Deferred payment letters of credit
that were default by clients are recognized by the Bank as granting of a compulsory loan with a
corresponding liability representing the financial obligation of the Bank to pay the beneficiaries and
to fulfil the guarantor obligation.
The Bank requires margin deposits to support credit-related financial instruments when it is deemed necessary. The margin deposit required varies from nil to 100% of the value of a commitment
granted, depending on the creditworthiness of customers as assessed by the Bank.
Details of the outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities at 31 December are as follows:
VND million

Guarantees for borrowings

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

531

-

Letters of credit

3,492,152

2,261,003

Other guarantees

1,974,036

1,183,327

5,466,719

3,444,330

Less: Margin deposits

(368,502)

(353,682)

Contingent liabilities

5,098,217

3,090,648
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38.

CREDIT RISK

38.1

Financial assets not past due and not impaired
The Bank’s financial assets which are not past due and not impaired include loans and advances
to customers classified as Current loan in accordance with Decision No. 493/2005/QD-NHNN and
Decision No. 18/2007/QD-NHNN; securities, receivables and other financial assets which are not
past due and no provision is required in accordance with Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC.
The Bank believed that it can recover fully and timely these financial assets in the near future.

38.2

Financial assets past due but not impaired
Past due financial assets but not impaired are presented as below:
VND million

Past due
Up to 90 days

From 91 to
180 days

From 181 to
360 days

Over 360 days

41,935

9,962

13,358

39,673

-

-

6,442

-

ASSETS
Customers’ loans
Other assets
Receivables

The Bank holds real estate properties, movable assets, valuable papers and other assets as
collaterals for these financial assets. The Bank has not determined adequately the fair value of
these collaterals due to lack of specific guidance and market information.

50

DongA Bank

Financial Statement 2011

51

39.

8,170,257
566,811
406,558
573,262
1,223,566
3,184,546
14,125,000
368,502
1,942,210
2,310,712
11,814,288
5,466,719
17,281,007

-

4,043,334
6,442
4,049,776
-

4,049,776
-

4,049,776

(9,201,799)

-

1,799,218
2,654,216
34,901,839
(9,201,799)

27,062,769
259

3,385,377

1,229,342
22,962,895
28,426
25,700,040

1,479,377

-

Up to 1
month

(3,560,238)

-

1,813,113
3,335,498
15,109,890
(3,560,238)

6,769,471
2,453

3,189,355

2,784,251
8,673,277
92,124
11,549,652

-

-

1,067,404

-

181,140
1,768,856
3,176,549
1,067,404

1,218,340
8,213

-

3,974,355
200,000
69,598
4,243,953

-

-

742,932

-

1,074,965
1,861,431
3,584,144
742,932

589,313
58,435

-

200,000
4,052,446
74,630
4,327,076

-

-

1,674,458

-

4,138
11,152
588,427
1,674,458

55,618
517,519

-

296,771
1,966,114
2,262,885

-

-

Subject to re-pricing interest rate in period
1-3
3-6
6 - 12
1-5
months
months
months
years

Note: Total assets represent gross carrying value which does not include provision for credit losses and impairment of investments.

Assets
Cash, gold and precious stones
Balances with the State Bank of
Vietnam (“SBV”)
Due from other credit institutions
Trading securities
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities
Long-term investments
Fixed assets
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Due to and borrowings from the SBV
and other banks
Due to customers
Grants, entrusted funds and loans
exposed to risks
Valuable papers issued
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Sensitive difference with interest rate of
balance-sheet items
Off-balance-sheet commitments affecting
sensitive difference with interest rate of
assets and liabilities (net)
Sensitive difference with interest
rate of balance-sheet and off-balance
sheet items

Overdue

Noninterest
bearing

The classification of assets and liabilities according to re-pricing period equivalent to VND as at 31 December 2011 was as follows:

MARKET RISK

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011
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(22,252)

-

22,252
(22,252)

22,252

-

-

-

-

Over 5
years

12,031,288

5,466,719

4,872,574
11,573,363
59,693,813
6,564,569

36,064,013
609,131

6,574,732

4,213,593
566,811
44,003,078
2,572,672
573,262
1,223,566
3,455,766
66,258,382

1,479,377

8,170,257

Total

VND million

B05/TCTD
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28,433

386,035

(147)

386,182

6,267,271

583

53,037

-

2,100

3,593,491

2,618,060

6,653,453

20,235

750

4,756,243

975,165

297,451

603,609

USD
equivalent

(2,678,067)

-

(2,678,067)

12,473,800

-

9,612,046

2,861,754

-

-

-

9,795,733

21,942

-

3,763,380

-

-

6,010,411

Gold
equivalent

220,967

-

220,967

149,459

-

12,270

-

-

137,179

10

370,426

4

-

1,239

114,190

-

254,993

Other
currencies
equivalent

(2,042,632)

(147)

(2,042,485)

19,008,342

583

9,683,166

2,861,754

2,100

3,841,060

2,619,679

16,965,857

42,279

750

8,546,705

1,116,988

297,451

6,961,684

Total

VND million

B05/TCTD

No analysis on foreign currency sensitivity was performed for the year ended 31 December 2011 since the Bank does not have sufficient data and technology.

Currency sensitivity

Note: Total assets represent gross carrying value which does not include provision for credit losses and impairment of investments.

Currency position of balance sheet and off-balance sheet items

-

28,433

Currency position of off-balance sheet items

Currency position of balance sheet items

117,812

Total liabilities and owners’ equity

Capital and reserves

5,813

-

Valuable papers issued

Other liabilities

-

110,390

Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks

Due to customers

Due to and borrowings from the SBV and other credit institutions

1,609

146,245

Total assets

Liabilities and owners’ equity

98

Other assets

-

25,843

Loans and advances to customers

Long-term investments

27,633

-

92,671

Due to other credit institutions

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam (“SBV”)

Cash, gold and precious stones

Assets

EUR
equivalent

The classification of assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than VND as at 31 December 2011 was as follows:

CURRENCY RISḲ

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011
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41.

-

-

Trading securities

748,454

Other assets

Total assets

-

Grants, entrusted funds and loans exposed to risks

Valuable papers issued

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

3,301,322

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,301,322

-

-

(20,455,846)

35,254,783

2,873,732

1,799,218

259

27,196,197

3,385,377

14,798,937

29,760

9

-

-

3,890,192

-

1,229,342

1,479,377

8,170,257

(6,220,394)

15,907,085

3,969,819

1,813,113

2,453

6,932,345

3,189,355

9,686,691

1,718,364

604

-

-

5,183,472

-

2,784,251

-

-

10,560,513

7,832,844

4,640,952

1,256,105

66,648

1,869,139

-

18,393,357

765,095

22,738

-

200,000

16,638,713

566,811

200,000

-

-

Trong hạn
Up to 1
3 - 12
month 1 - 3 months
months

Note: Total assets represent gross amount which does not include provision for credit losses and impairment of investments.

748,454

-

Due to customers

Net liquidity

-

Due to and borrowing from the SBV and other banks

Liabilities

6,442

Fixed assets

-

-

-

Investment securities

3,301,322

742,012

Long-term investments

Loans to customers

-

-

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam (“SBV”)

Due from other credit institutions

-

-

Cash, gold and precious stones

Assets

Overdue
Over 3
Up to 3
months
months

The classification of assets and liabilities by maturity as at 31 December 2011 was as follows:

LIQUIDITY RISK

as at and for the year ended 31 December 2011
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13,346,255

676,849

88,860

4,138

517,519

66,332

-

14,023,104

487,597

313,772

573,262

2,372,672

10,275,801

-

-

-

-

1 - 5 years

5,284,265

22,252

-

-

22,252

-

-

5,306,517

448,508

886,443

-

-

3,971,566

-

-

-

-

Over 5
years

VND million

6,564,569

59,693,813

11,573,363

4,872,574

609,131

36,064,013

6,574,732

66,258,382

3,455,766

1,223,566

573,262

2,572,672

44,003,078

566,811

4,213,593

1,479,377

8,170,257

Total
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CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
VND million

31 December 2011 31 December 2010
38,956

Capital commitments regarding constructions and
purchase of office equipments

33,931

Irrevocable operating leases
- due within one year
- due from two to five years
- due after five years

43.

73,032

50,379

134,612

121,963

25,825

26,405

233,469

198,747

EVENTS AFTER THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
There have been no significant events occurring after the consolidated balance sheet date which
would require adjustments or disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

44.

EXCHANGE RATES OF APPLICABLE FOREIGN CURRENCIES AGAINST VIETNAMESE
DONG AT THE YEAR-END
31 December 2011
VND

31 December 2010
VND

USD

20,828

18,932

EUR

27,290

27,390

GBP

32,470

32,110

CHF

22,380

21,950

271

254

SGD

16,210

16,010

CAD

20,640

20,700

AUD

21,430

21,080

JPY

Prepared by:

Approved by:
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DONGA COMMERCIAL JOINT STOCK BANK

Address
Telephone
Email
Hotline
Swift Code

:
:
:
:
:

Phan Dang Luu Street, Ward 3, Phu Nhuan District, HCMC
(848) 39951483  Fax: (848) 39951614
1900545464@dongabank.com.vn
1900545464
EACBVNVX

